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Marie Keating Foundation

“
4

The Foundation is
committed to being
open, transparent
and accountable ”
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Letter from Chairperson
of the Board
On behalf of the Board, I am very proud to present the 2016 Annual Report for the
Marie Keating Foundation.
2016 was another impactful year for the Marie Keating
Foundation. The annual report contains a full view of the
programmes and services run by the Foundation. Our
number one goal continues to be “to make cancer less
frightening by enlightening”.

Cancer Awareness

The Foundation has promoted a number of key campaigns
raising public awareness of the risk factors, signs and
symptoms associated with each of the key cancers. The
key awareness campaigns we promoted during 2016 were
Skintervention Skin Cancer campaign; Men’s health campaign
‘Get Men Talking’; Breast Cancer; general health awareness
‘Your Health Your Choice’ and Cervical Cancer ‘Don’t Fear
the Smear’. The Foundation’s nurses spoke to over 25,400
people, our Comfort Fund helped over 531 families in their
time of great financial and emotional stress, and our Schools
Cancer Awareness Programme has trained over 89 teachers
and educated thousands of our students from schools
nationwide on the dangers of smoking and lung cancer, skin
cancer and other cancers and the importance of a healthy
lifestyle. All this is achieved by a small team, including our full
and part-time nurses and our cancer programme and services
staff based in our office in Dublin. Each team member is
extremely committed and works above and beyond to ensure
that our cancer services and programmes are provided to
the highest standards. On behalf of the Board, I would like to
thank our team for its commitment and incredible hard work.

Survive & Thrive

There are now over 150,000 cancer survivors in Ireland.
Through the Survive & Thrive workshop programmes and
seminars, the Foundation supports cancer patients and
survivors who have finished their treatment to adapt to the
‘new normal’. Both workshops and seminars include advice
from experts on issues that cancer survivors often face
including: coping with emotions; fatigue and other symptoms;
changing nutritional needs; coping with physical change;
managing stress and physical activity. The programme
exceeded its target and saw Survive & Thrive help over 240
cancer survivors adjust to the ‘new normal’ in 2016.

Those from the most deprived communities are more
likely to be diagnosed and die from cancer. As a result
of this, the Foundation strives to ensure that 30% of our
nursing resources are directed towards disadvantaged
communities, including early school leavers, the homeless,
and travellers. By providing free and confidential advice within
the community, the Marie Keating Foundation is hoping to
improve health literacy, awareness and uptake of healthy
lifestyle choices and participation in screening services.
In the past few years, the charity sector continues to have
a cloud of doubt cast over its industry. As Chair, I continue
to work with the Board and the staff on ensuring that the
Foundation remains as transparent and as accountable as
possible. The Foundation has achieved what is called a
Triple Lock of good Governance for the Charity Sector, which
means that it is in full compliance with the Governance Code
for the Voluntary and Charity Sector, the Fundraising Guiding
Principles and the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) for its accounts. The Board and senior management
team work together to ensure that all funds are spent carefully
so as to achieve maximum impact. When you donate to the
Marie Keating Foundation, we know that it is important to
you that the funds are spent wisely. At the Foundation, we
are and have always been scrupulous with every euro that is
entrusted to us to spend on our cancer awareness mission.
The Foundation is very proud that in 2016 84% of our total
income is spent directly on our services. The services this
charity is providing are crucial to so many families as they
journey through a challenging time.
The Marie Keating Foundation is one of many charities that
fills a gap with cancer awareness and support services that
are not provided by public services. However, without your
support, the Foundation could not continue to operate. That
is the ultimate goal of the Foundation and something that the
Foundation staff work tirelessly to achieve every day.

Sincerely,

Reaching Marginalised Communities

People from the most disadvantaged communities in Ireland
have a significantly lower chance of surviving cancer after five
years according to the National Cancer Registry Ireland.

Thérèse Rochford
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A letter from our patron,
Ronan Keating
Welcome to the 2016 Annual Report for the Marie Keating Foundation. As Patron of the Foundation and
one of Marie’s five children, it gives me great pride to present this report to you. You will see that the
Foundation’s small but mighty team have accomplished a tremendous amount over the year, with the vital
help of corporate and individual supporters and our dynamic volunteers.
My family and I often talk about how our mam would still be here today if she had only gone to the doctor earlier. The form of
breast cancer that took Mam’s life when she was only 51 was very curable. She has missed many birthdays, weddings, and
simple family dinners because she was not aware of the signs and symptoms of cancer.
That is one of the reasons that our mobile information units and the nursing team is so core to the mission of the Marie Keating
Foundation. In 2016, our nurses spoke to over 25,479 people about cancer prevention and early detection. Our nurses talk
to people in schools, colleges, shopping centres, community halls and workplaces about how to reduce their risk of cancer
through lifestyle change, about the importance of early diagnosis and about the need to go to the GP promptly if they notice
any worrying changes in their body. Rates of cancer in Ireland are set to rise. In fact, by 2040 the number of people here with
cancer is predicted to double. This means that our nursing services will be more essential than ever and I hope that you will
continue to support their vital work.
At the Foundation, we want to make cancer less frightening by enlightening. The only way to do this is by talking about it.
While almost everyone knows someone who has had cancer, many people do not know that there are simple steps that we can
all take right now to help reduce our risk of getting this disease or to catch it at its earliest stages when the chances of survival
are best. Throughout 2016, the Foundation’s cancer awareness programmes have had a clear focus on this message, from
‘Your Health: Your Choice’ & ‘Don’t Fear the Smear’ in January to our ‘Skintervention’ skin cancer campaign in the summer
through to breast cancer and men’s health awareness campaigns in the autumn and winter.
None of the Marie Keating Foundation’s work would be possible without the support of many people, communities, companies
and organisations. While it is not possible for me to thank them all here, I would like to give special thanks to Marks & Spencer
Ireland for their enduring friendship and support. I am also extremely appreciative of the volunteers who give up their valuable
time and energy to help the Foundation. Without you, it simply would not be possible for the Foundation to achieve its mission,
so thank you. To the hardworking team at the Foundation who all go the extra mile in ensuring that our vision of ‘a world
free from the fear of cancer’ is achieved. Finally I would also like to express my appreciation to my sister, Linda, who works
tirelessly in our mother’s name and of whom the whole family is very proud.
If you have not had a chance to engage with the Marie Keating Foundation yet, I hope you will do so this year. Visit our
website, step on board one of our mobile information units or attend one of our events. This is a fantastic charity that deserves
your support and can also support you if you are in need.

Yours sincerely,

Ronan Keating
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“

At the Foundation,
we want to make
cancer less frightening by
enlightening. The
only way to do this is
by talking about it.”
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“
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Education and raising
awareness remains a
key focus in our
efforts to reduce the
risk of cancer.”

Annual Report 2016

A letter from our Chief
Executive Officer
Once again, I’m delighted to present the Marie Keating Foundation’s Annual Report for 2016. Looking back
on all that we have achieved throughout the past year, I am incredibly proud to be working with a team so
committed and driven to ‘making cancer less frightening by enlightening’ and to achieving our vision of ‘a
world free from the fear of cancer.’
The new National Cancer Strategy 2017 – 2026 launched in
June by Minster for Health, Simon Harris sets out an ambitious
plan to make further strides in cancer control and to meet the
needs of cancer patients in Ireland for the next decade. All of
us at the Foundation very much welcome this strategy and
look forward to playing our part in helping to meet the strategy
objectives.
The need for the Marie Keating Foundation’s cancer
awareness and support services is now greater than ever as
the number of cases of cancer in Ireland is expected to double
by 2040. The Marie Keating Foundation is doing everything
it can to educate people about spotting cancer early and
to support those who are affected by cancer directly and
indirectly.
We particularly welcome the specific focus on cancer
prevention which is a key cornerstone of the cancer strategy.
In view of the increasing evidence that certain cancers are
more likely to be diagnosed in deprived groups and also
that people living in geographic areas with higher levels of
deprivation are more likely to die from cancer, we continue to
target our work more effectively to these underserved groups,
and areas where our help is most needed. Given our specific
focus on underserved communities, we have also sought to
draw attention to the ‘health gap’ that sees people living in
poorer areas at greater risk of getting and dying from cancer.
Education and raising awareness remains a key focus in our
efforts to reduce the risk of cancer. The percentage of cancers
attributable to lifestyle choices is estimated to be 40% and
so we continue our cancer prevention work on a number of
fronts: through our community nursing outreach work on
our mobile units; through our School’s Cancer Awareness
Programme and particularly through our ‘Your Health Your
Choice ‘campaign which focuses on alcohol moderation; on
skin cancer prevention, on giving up smoking, on diet and
nutrition and on the value of physical exercise and wellbeing in
the fight against cancer.
Looking back over the past year, there are many ways we have
provided support to thousands of men and women throughout
Ireland. Some highlights include a number of excellent public
awareness campaigns e.g. a new Skintervention skin cancer
campaign which saw more than 750,000 watch a video about
melanoma prevention; as well as multifaceted campaigns on
Cervical Cancer; Prostate Cancer and Men’s Health as well
as Breast Cancer. A big highlight was having the opportunity

of showcasing our work with cancer survivors through the
‘Out The Other Side’ garden at Bloom and the exhibition of
10 stories of breast cancer survivorship which brought its
positive message of hope to a number of venues throughout
the country. This campaign won the Irish Health Care Award
for Best Patient Education in October 2016.
As all our services are provided free of charge, we are
constantly challenged to ensure that we raise sufficient funds
to provide our services. Thanks to the support of a number
of longstanding and new partners, an innovative range of
fundraising events and campaigns such as the Powering Pink
Duck Race and the BBQ to Beat Cancer Campaign, we were
able to meet our fundraising goals in 2016. Whilst managing
our fundraising expenditure and overheads as tightly as
possible, we were able to increase the percentage spent on
cancer services to 84% of total income.
Our supporters and our staff rightly expect that our
fundraising, nursing services and support functions operate to
the highest level of effectiveness and value for money and that
the Foundation is run with the strongest governance. We have
continued to ensure that transparency, accountability and
governance are a key area of focus for for all at the Foundation
and we are very proud to have achieved the Triple Lock best
practice governance standard in 2016.
I wish to extend our heartfelt thanks to all of our loyal
individual and corporate supporters and donors, to our
volunteers who worked so hard at our various events
throughout the year, and to all those who took part in the many
engaging fundraising events around the country.
I would personally like to thank our Chairperson, Thérèse
Rochford, for her huge commitment and enduring support
in the past number of years. To our Board Members who
work so hard behind the scenes and give up so much of
their personal time and effort in supporting the Foundation’s
work on a voluntary basis. I would also like to share my deep
appreciation for the hard work and loyalty that every member
of our staff have shown throughout this very busy year.

Liz Yeates
Chief Executive Officer
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Objectives and Achievements
for 2016

Objective

Status

Community information service and health promotion
Visit 380 locations with Mobile Information Units and/or
nursing presentations.

392 locations visited by MKF nurses throughout Ireland.

Ensure key focus on marginalised communities in
community outreach service.

11% of audiences visited were from marginalised
communities.

Include 65 workplace settings in visited locations.

116 workplaces visited by nursing team.

Have over 22,750 direct conversations about cancer
prevention and early detection with the general public.

25,479 direct conversations held with the general public –
an increase of nearly 12% on 2015.

Deliver Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme to
50+ secondary schools and upskill 80 teachers on the
programme content

89 teachers trained from schools nationwide & students
from 76 schools upskilled on Schools’ Cancer Awareness
Programme.

Public awareness campaigns
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Deliver effective, targeted public awareness campaigns
around healthy lifestyle choices, breast cancer, cervical
cancer, prostate cancer, skin cancer and men’s health.

Multidimensional cancer awareness campaigns were
delivered for key cancers with wider audience reach.

Integrate digital tools into awareness campaigns.

Digital media was a key component of our awareness
campaigns, especially ‘Your Health: Your Choice’ campaign
and Skintervention skin cancer campaign.

Continue to expand on cancer information available on the
Foundation’s website.

Information available on website expanded to include bowel
cancer, men’s health section, prostate cancer survivorship
and coping with cancer section.

Increase social media following and engagement.

Social media following increased by 15% on both Facebook
and Twitter and engagement on health information increased
significantly through use of videos and infographics.
Example - over 750,000 people viewed a video on social
media regarding skin cancer prevention and early detection.

Annual Report 2016

“

This year we had 25,479
direct conversations with
the general public about
cancer prevention and
early detection.”
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Objectives and Achievements
for 2016

Objective

Status

Comfort Fund
Assist families in financial distress as a direct result of
cancer.

531 Comfort Fund grants awarded in 2016 totalling
€111,159.

Ensure close monitoring of grant approval and optimise
grant allocation.

Grant approval process streamlined. No. of grants increased
whilst maintaining average grant value to meet increased
demand.

Seek to diversify base of grant applications to ensure broad
national base.

Grant applications received from 25 counties and distributed
throughout whole country.

Survive & Thrive
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Further develop comprehensive Survive & Thrive
programmes supporting cancer survivors around the
country.

240+ cancer survivors attended Survive & Thrive
programmes & seminars in 2016.

Run 3 x 6 week programmes in Tipperary, Waterford and
Dublin.

3 programmes run in Tipperary, Waterford & Dun Laoghaire
(Dublin) and attended by over 40 male and female cancer
survivors.

Hold 5 x 1 day Survive & Thrive seminars in Dublin,
Limerick, Cork and Kerry.

5 x 1 day Survive & Thrive seminars held as planned and
attended by over 200 male and female cancer survivors.

Launch a new Positive Living programme for people
affected by metastatic cancer and hold first event.

Programme launched with a 6-week programme for women
affected by metastatic breast cancer held in October 2016.

Annual Report 2016

Objective

Status

Fundraising
Further grow annual income.

Annual income declined marginally by 4.5% to €1,267,462,
however €1,061,727 was spent on services representing
84% of total income.

Continue to diversify fundraising base and identify new
fundraising streams to ensure continuation of core services.

A number of new corporate partnerships & new fundraising
campaigns were developed, broadening our fundraising
base.

Increase number of educational / health sponsorship grants
from corporate partners by 50% for cancer awareness
campaigns and services.

€350,775 received in health education grants for promotion
of key cancer awareness campaigns on skin cancer, men’s
health and Schools Cancer Awareness Programme. This
represented an increase of 128%.

Governance
Have financial accounts independently audited and make
them publically available.

Accounts were independently audited by Mazars and are
available at the back of this report. Audited accounts for the
last three years are available on the Foundation’s websitemariekeating.ie.

Meet requirements of SORP accounting standards.

2016 accounts have been issued in line with SORP – best in
class accounting standard for charities in Ireland.

Ensure we are in full compliance with all charity codes and
regulations.

The Marie Keating Foundation fully adheres to the Triple
Lock of best charity governance and is fully signed up with
Charities Regulatory Authority.
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Community Information Service
and Health Promotion

25,479

11% of audiences
reached from marginalised
communities

people reached by Marie
Keating Foundation’s
nursing team

388
people referred to their GP
after visit with MKF nurse

9,512 men
By 2020, one in two of us will be diagnosed with cancer
in our lifetime. Currently, over 150 people a day are
diagnosed with cancer in Ireland. That is one person
every three minutes. While these facts are alarming, we
do not have to accept this future. The Marie Keating
Foundation is determined to help prevent cancer by
educating and empowering people to live healthy lives
and to spot cancer earlier.
One of the core services that the Marie Keating Foundation
offers is its community information service. A team of eight
part-time nurses, supported by three mobile information
units, travels to every part of the Republic of Ireland and
gives presentations about all types of cancer at all types of
events and locations, including schools, shopping centres,
offices, sport centres, community halls, homeless shelters,
hospitals, gardening centres and farming festivals.
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In 2016, the Marie Keating Foundation nurses had direct
conversations with 25,479 members of public about ways
to reduce their risk of cancer through lifestyle changes, and
about the importance of early diagnosis and going to the GP
promptly if they notice something amiss. This is more people
than ever before and means that since the Foundation was
established, our nurses have reached over a quarter of a
million people with our life-saving message.

15,967 women
The Marie Keating Foundation nurses gave general
presentations about healthy lifestyle choices that can help
reduce your risk of cancer as part of our ‘Your Health: Your
Choice’ campaign, and also gave bespoke presentations
about particular types of cancer such as skin cancer, breast
cancer, prostate cancer, testicular cancer and cervical
cancer.
The Marie Keating Foundation nurses and mobile units
went directly into local community settings to speak to
people about:
• Knowing your body – getting to know your body and what
is normal for you means it is easier to spot any unusual
changes. A change will not usually turn out to be cancer,
but if it is something serious, talking to your GP about it
early can make all the difference.
• Living a healthy life – four in ten cancers in Ireland could be
prevented through healthy lifestyle choices. Being smoke
free, drinking less alcohol, eating healthily, watching your
weight, being active and being SunSmart can all help to
lower the risk of cancer.
• Making a positive change – The Marie Keating Foundation
nurses distribute our resources (brochures; leaflets;
infographics; bookmarks etc.) and signpost people to
information, support and services in their local area.

Annual Report 2016

Nursing activity
by region
The three mobile information units are split across
three regions of the Republic of Ireland. In 2016, more
people than ever before visited the units or spoke to
our nurses. The below shows the activity of the nursing
team and mobile units by region:
(Number of people seen per region)		

4,417

Nursing visits
by locations type

16,590

4,472

The Marie Keating Foundation nursing team visited 389
locations nationwide during 2016. Here is a breakdown
of the location types:

Health
Centres,
Hospital &
Health Events
44

Community
Centres
124

Schools,
Colleges &
Youth Reach
88

Family
Resource
Centres
11

Workplaces
116

Traveller
Groups
5

Homeless
Shelter
1
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Reaching Marginalised Communities
While cancer can affect all of us, some people are more likely
to get cancer than others. Some factors, such as where you
live, whether or not you have a job, how much you earn and
whether you are a male or female all affect your cancer risk.
Indeed, research from the National Cancer Registry shows
that people from the most disadvantaged communities in
Ireland have a significantly lower chance of surviving cancer
after five years. Those from the most deprived communities
are twice as likely to be diagnosed and die from cancer as
those who are least deprived. Lung, stomach, mouth, head
and neck and cervical cancers are all more common in areas
of higher unemployment and lower levels of education.
Because of these stark facts, the Marie Keating Foundation
ensures that a key focus for its nursing resources is on
disadvantaged communities. In 2016, 11% of visits were
held in underserved communities, including e.g. Pavee Point;
Raheen Family Resource Centre, Raheen, Co Wexford; and
a Men’s Sheds group in Trim, Co Meath. The ‘Your Health:
Your Choice’ campaign, which is covered on page 22, also
targeted disadvantaged communities in Clare, Monaghan and
Tipperary to speak with people about how to prevent cancer.

Family Resource Centres

Working with people at a local level to provide practical
advice about how to prevent cancer and detect it at its
earliest stages has always been a key mission of the Marie
Keating Foundation. Since the Foundation was founded in
2001, the Foundation has developed an excellent working
relationship with many of the over 100 Family Resource
Centres around Ireland. In 2016, the Foundation nurses
visited 11 family resource centres to speak to people about
cancer prevention and early detection.
“The Marie Keating Foundation visit to the Family Resource
Centre in April 2016 was very beneficial to the community of
Ballina. We found the Your Health Your Choice talk extremely
educational and easy to follow. We are definitely more aware
of the five simple changes, through healthy lifestyle choices,
we can all make to reduce our cancer risk.”
Shirley Moyles, Ballina Family Resource Centre, Co. Mayo.

Traveller groups

The All Ireland Traveller Health Study (2010) found higher
levels of mortality and morbidity among Travellers compared
with the general population. Life expectancy for male
Travellers was found to be 15 years lower than for the
general population and 11 years lower for females. Part
of the Healthy Ireland strategy focuses on addressing the
health needs of all groups experiencing health inequalities,
including Travellers, and provides an opportunity to take a
new approach to tackling issues such as health inequalities
16

and the social determinants of health more effectively. The
Marie Keating Foundation is pleased to support this work as
we have always been engaged with ‘hard to reach’ groups as
part of our health promotion work. In 2016, the Marie Keating
Foundation continued its work with five Traveller groups and
attended organised events in various parts of Cork, Donegal,
Sligo, Galway and Dublin throughout the year. Our nurses
gave information talks to groups of Traveller men and women
and spoke with people after the sessions on a one-to-one
basis. The Foundation nurses also attended five traveller
group events. The support workers who work with these
groups continue to be very positive about the service the
Marie Keating Foundation provided, as many in the Traveller
community, particularly men, are often very reluctant to
engage with health services.
A highlight of our work with Traveller groups in 2016 was to
work with Pavee Point on the creation of a new ‘Be Breast
Cancer Aware’ card. This is a small card that is designed
to be carried in a wallet. It clearly illustrates five steps
for women to take to check their breasts. It also provides
information and contact details about where to go if they
are concerned about breast cancer. Both the Foundation
and Pavee Point were delighted to win the National Adult
Literacy Association (NALA) ‘Plain English Award’ for public
health information for this ‘Be Breast Cancer Aware’ card. The
awards are given for producing information in language that is
easy to read and understand.
“It was great to work in partnership with the Marie Keating
Foundation on the new ‘Be Breast Cancer Aware’ card and
to win the National Adult Literacy Association ‘Plain English
Award’ was just amazing. Our collaboration with the Marie
Keating Foundation is instrumental to us. ”
Mick Mooney, Male Health Co-Ordinator, Pavee Point.

Youthreach

The Marie Keating Foundation provides our free health
promotion service to Youthreach groups. Students in this
programme are early school leavers (aged 15-20 years).
Youthreach aims to provide young people with the knowledge
and skills they need to participate fully in society. The Marie
Keating Foundation helps by providing talks to students on
healthy lifestyle choices. The Foundation’s nurses attended
twelve Youthreach events in 2016. These visits are usually
every two years. This is another area that has been identified
for further concentration and is part of the education
programme for 2017.

Annual Report 2016

“

The Marie Keating Foundation’s
mission is to make cancer less
frightening by enlightening.”
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A view from the frontline
Feedback from Pat Mc Carthy,
a Marie Keating Foundation Nurse
I have been involved as a community nurse, working on behalf
of the Marie Keating Foundation since 2002. The Foundation
was established in 1998 by the Keating family following the
untimely death of their mother Marie Keating. I have always
been motivated by its four core objectives of delivering
assistance and advice to the general public, and in particular
to men and women who are suffering from, or have concerns
about cancer.
The Foundation’s four core areas for community outreach are:
1. Cancer Information and Services, with emphasis being on early
detection as key to good treatment outcomes.
2. T
 hree Mobile Information Units – as a means of reaching as many
people as possible.
3. Comfort Fund - which provides financial assistance to people who
are currently receiving treatment for any kind of cancer and who,
as a result find themselves in financial difficulty.
4. ‘Your Health: Your Choice’ - cut your risk of cancer by making simple changes to your everyday life and other cancer
awareness campaign messages.

The Marie Keating Foundation also delivers an excellent variety of follow on programmes for cancer survivors. To achieve the
delivery of the above core objectives, the Marie Keating Foundation have a team of fifteen staff, including nine nurses on the
road nationwide, with adequate office and administrative backup. Our work includes, National Community Outreach Service,
Schools Cancer Awareness Programme, ‘Ask The Nurse’ online service and Public Awareness Campaigns.
Each area is well thought through and designed to deliver help where it is most needed. Its objectives are specifically
targeted at those most in need and those most likely to benefit from preventative advice. It is a pleasure to work in the Mobile
Information Unit and meet members of the general public and assist them in some small way either with cancer concerns,
or rehabilitation while they are in recovery. I find that some people, especially at vulnerable times in their lives, get very
concerned at the thought of the word cancer. It must be borne in mind that a lot of cancers are now very treatable and people
have very good outcomes, especially with early detection.
The Marie Keating Foundation, like all progressive organisations is evolving constantly in its battle to keep pace with the latest
medical breakthroughs in the science of cancer treatment and prevention. This became very obvious to me on my return to
the Foundation in 2015 after a four year break. The level of expertise and up to the minute medical knowledge, that is now
being delivered by the Foundation, is second to none in the wider area of cancer care and prevention.
I look forward to being part of this dynamic team into the future and hope in some small way I may be able to bring a little
comfort and reassurance to somebody who may need the services we offer, during a time of stress and concerns in their lives.

18
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Marie Keating Foundation Nurses out in the community

“

Many people we meet
have concerns about
cancer, we give them
practical steps to
help reduce their risk
& stay vigilant.”
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Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme
•

By 2020, 1 in 2 of us will be getting cancer in our lifetime.

•

Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme highlights cancer prevention as part of SPHE curriculum.

•

Programme also provides information and support to those already affected by cancer.

•

In 2016, the Marie Keating Foundation visited 76 secondary schools and trained 89 SPHE teachers.

In 2016, more than 30,000 people were told “You have
cancer.” This news can have a shocking impact on the person
as well as their partners, children, friends and parents. What
is perhaps more frightening than the fact that one person
every three minutes was diagnosed with cancer in Ireland is
that this number is set to double within 25 years. Irish people
are living longer while our lifestyles are becoming increasingly
unhealthy. We are heavier, less active and spending more time
in the sun than ever before.
The Marie Keating Foundation is actively meeting this
challenge by trying to highlight the simple steps we can
all take to reduce our cancer risk and also by providing
information and support to those already affected by the
disease.
The Foundation’s Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme
helps to achieve both of these goals. It aims to promote
awareness among students in secondary schools and
Youthreach programmes about various forms of cancer
and to help them understand the importance of detecting
cancer at an early stage. By ‘making cancer less frightening
by enlightening’ for students, the programme endeavours
to engage students with age-appropriate, interactive and
informative material. The nine-module programme is available
free of charge and forms part of the suite of supports
for post-primary Social Personal and Health Education
(SPHE) in-service available to schools from the Professional
Development Service for Teachers.
Since the updated Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme
was launched in September 2014, over 209 teachers have
been trained directly in the delivery of the programme,
including 89 in 2016. In 2016, 5,194 students in 76 schools
were upskilled on our Schools’ Programme.
One of the key messages that the nursing team seeks to
impress upon young people is that whilst the prevalence
of cancer is on the increase, early detection and continued
improvements in treatments mean that cancer survival levels
continue to improve.
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Indeed, there are currently 150,000 people in Ireland living
with or beyond cancer. The Marie Keating Foundation’s
Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme means that we can
give young people the information they need to understand
cancer and the opportunity to discuss it openly. Many people
feel that cancer is inevitable but the programme focuses
on the message that four in ten cancers in Ireland could be
prevented through healthy lifestyle choices. The curriculumlinked lesson plans help students reduce their future risk
of developing cancer by advising them on diet and fitness,
not smoking and being SunSmart as well as improving their
awareness of key symptoms for cancer such as irregular
lumps and bumps, changes to the skin, and coughs or
unexplained changes to bowl habits that do not go away. This
important resource can empower our young people and show
them that while cancer is a horrible disease, we can all take
steps to reduce our risk.
One of the SPHE regional managers who the Foundation
has worked with in rolling out the campaign is Brian Murray.
Speaking about the programme, Mr Murray said, “The Marie
Keating Foundation’s Schools Cancer Awareness Programme
is a great asset for SPHE teachers. Talking about cancer in
the classroom is never easy because it’s such a sensitive and
potentially frightening subject and each student will have their
own experience. However, using the Foundation’s programme
gives teachers a way to approach the subject in a wellbalanced, proactive and thoughtful way that also gives the
students a sense of empowerment. We want them to know
that while cancer is a dreadful disease that touches many of
us, it’s never too early to start making proactive choices that
reduce your risk. Smoking and being aware of the dangers of
the sun and sun beds are just two of the issues that resonate
with them. Working with the Foundation on the SPHE inservice days has meant that as many as 20 teachers can be
trained on how to use the programme at once. The feedback
from participating teachers has been very positive, giving
them the confidence to talk about cancer and help play a vital
role in protecting their student’s health and well-being.”
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One of the key ways that the Marie Keating
Foundation has reached students all over Ireland
is through a close working relationship with Social
Personal Health and Education managers. This
team from the Department of Education has invited
the Foundation to attend SPHE in-service days with
regional managers, allowing the Foundation to meet
approximately 20 teachers at a time to demonstrate
how to deliver the programme and highlight
important issues for teaching and learning in such a
sensitive area. Where SPHE teachers have needed
support, the Foundation’s nurses have attended
their schools or provided help by phone and email.
For those who do not feel confident in the initial
delivery, the Marie Keating nurses have worked with
them to ensure seamless delivery of the Cancer
Awareness Programme. Some regional managers
have developed confidence since the launch and
now deliver the training themselves which has
further broadened the footprint of the programme.
The Marie Keating nurses also teach in schools
themselves, particularly in transition year. Testicular
cancer is among one of the priorities when speaking
to groups of young men, while cervical cancer and
the HPV vaccine is a priority when speaking to
groups of young women. Skin cancer awareness is
highlighted to all students as it is the most common
cancer in Ireland for both men and women.
The programme continues to go from strength to
strength and, at the end of 2016, the Foundation
received the good news that the Medtronic
Communities Foundation was awarding us a grant
to provide bursaries to 9 post-graduate nurses
based in University College Dublin, Dublin City
University and University College Cork. The post
graduate nurses will work with secondary school
students, especially those in DEIS schools, to help
spread the message of cancer prevention yet further
throughout 2017.
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Public Awareness Campaigns
Your Health: Your Choice
•

40,000 cases of cancer diagnosed in Ireland each year.

•

4 in 10 cases of cancer preventable through lifestyle change.

•

Your Health: Your Choice campaign urges people to take action.

•

Exercise, keep a healthy weight, don’t smoke, reduce alcohol intake, be SunSmart.

Many people think that cancer is down to bad luck or bad
genes. The incidence of cancer is growing in Ireland and,
by 2040, it is expected that around 80,000 people will be
diagnosed each year. However, this does not have to be the
case. Over four in ten cancers can be prevented if we make
simple changes to five parts of our everyday life. Proudly
funded by the Medtronic Foundation, the Marie Keating
Foundation decided to develop a new lifestyle education
campaign, based on global and Irish research which shows
that simple changes in your life can significantly reduce your
risk of cancer. The key objectives for this campaign were as
follows:
• Emphasise to Irish public that there is a clear link between
having a healthy lifestyle and a reduced risk of cancer and
that people can take an active role in their own health.
• Develop free lifestyle advice resources that are easily
accessible to people with low health literacy, across digital,
print and community outreach materials.
• Reach out to community groups in marginalised areas with
new resources highlighting how people can take control of
their own health and reduce their risk of cancer.
Dovetailing with the Healthy Ireland strategy, the Marie
Keating Foundation, revamped its ‘Your Health: Your Choice’
campaign to focus on five lifestyle factors that can have a
clear impact on your cancer risk:
•
•
•
•
•
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Alcohol
Smoking
Obesity & diet
Exercise
UV Rays & Sunbeds

The link between each one of these lifestyle factors and
cancer is presented in an accessible, easy-to-understand and
colourful way as part of the Foundation’s ‘Your Health: Your
Choice’ campaign using plain English to ensure that it’s easy
to read and understand. The materials and video content
includes Irish statistics and contributions by Irish specialists
and Irish cancer survivors so it is as relevant as possible for
the Irish audience.
Each Marie Keating Foundation nurse now uses the ‘Your
Health: Your Choice’ materials as a key element of their
nursing education and awareness programme and it is
central to their nursing talks and presentations to community
and workplace groups as well as in school and college
settings. The nursing team have used the new campaign
in an especially targeted approach to community groups
in disadvantaged areas. The nurses report that the new
materials have made it easier to bring the important lifestyle
messaging to these at risk communities they visit such
as travellers groups, Men’s Sheds and youth unemployed
groups.
Encouraged by the positive response received to date, the
Foundation has now also integrated the content of ‘Your
Health: Your Choice’ into our Schools’ Cancer Awareness
Programme which educates secondary school students
about cancer. This health promotion campaign has been very
successful, receiving a special commendation at the Irish
Healthcare Awards in 2016. The campaign’s free lifestyle
resources were delivered to over 15,000 people, over 122,507
people have watched the ‘Your Health: Your Choice’ videos
and the campaign’s Facebook page and microsite were
visited by more than 28,000 people. The nursing team had
9,776 direct conversations with people about cancer and
healthy lifestyle choices using the ‘Your Health Your Choice’
materials in communities around Ireland in 2016.
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“

You can cut your risk of
cancer by making simple
changes to our everyday life”
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Cervical Cancer
•

Over 300 cases of cervical cancer are diagnosed in Ireland annually.

•

Cervical cancer can be prevented through smear tests and HPV vaccine.

•

Smear tests are free for all women aged 25 to 60 from +4,500 GPs and nurses nationwide.

•

Early detection offers the best chance of survival.

Cervical cancer is one of the ten most frequently diagnosed
female cancers in Ireland, with over 300 women diagnosed
each year. However, cervical cancer is almost entirely
preventable through the HPV vaccine and smear tests. Smear
tests involve taking cells from the neck of the womb to check
for changes. In this way, irregular cells can be found before
they have a chance to develop into cancer.
The Marie Keating Foundation launched its ‘Don’t Fear the
Smear’ campaign in January 2016, to coincide with European
Cervical Cancer Prevention Week. Proudly supported by
Roche, the purpose of the campaign was to highlight that
smear tests are quick, easy and free and most important, they
could save your life. The campaign targeted women aged 25
to 60 nationwide who can avail of the CervicalCheck service
from any of the 4,500 participating doctors and nurses
nationwide.
The Marie Keating Foundation conducted research amongst
women that found that women spent 3,513 minutes a year
doing their hair, 3,285 minutes a year doing our makeup and
577 minutes a year shaving or waxing their legs, however
many don’t take the 10 minutes needed for a Smear Test. The
messages of this research were used in a an engaging video,
through PR and digital materials to highlight that over 253,000
of women have not made time for a smear test.
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The campaign was very successful, reaching over 1.1 million
people across traditional and digital channels.
Nearly 4,000 people visited the campaign microsite in a week,
where the call to action was to take part in CervicalCheck
and there was numerous ways to click through to register for
the service or check when your next smear was due. A new
information leaflet was produced for the campaign which
quickly became the most popular leaflet that the nurses hand
out to women under 35 and has already been reprinted twice.
To mark European Cervical Cancer Prevention Week, the
Foundation held its first ever women’s networking breakfast
which was called ‘Feel the Fear and Do It Anyway,’ which had
a theme of being brave, facing your fears and being inspired
by strong women. Speakers included leading women from
Google, Waxperts and Opsh and the event was MC’ed by
Shona Murray from Newstalk. At the beginning of the event,
Dr Grainne Flannelly, Clinical Director, CervicalCheck, gave a
15 minute presentation on the importance of smear tests. 52
women attended the event, many of whom had never had any
previous contact with the Foundation. Each guest received a
Don’t Fear the Smear pack with CervicalCheck contact card.
A post-event survey revealed that 100% of attendees were
planning or had already checked when their next smear was
due as a result of attending the event.
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Skin Cancer Awareness
•

Skin cancer is most common cancer in Ireland.

•

Over 10,000 new cases are diagnosed in this country every year.

•

Foundation’s campaign focused on melanoma- the most deadly type.

•

Skintervention video was viewed over 750,000 times in 6 weeks.

•

This is most successful digital campaign the Foundation has ever run.

Skin cancer is the most common cancer in Ireland. Each
year, over 10,000 cases are diagnosed and the number of
cases continues to rise. Over 90% of cases are caused
by overexposure to UV rays, which comes from the sun or
sunbeds. This means that almost all cases of skin cancer
are preventable. Melanoma is the most deadly form of skin
cancer. Incidence of melanoma is rising faster than any other
cancer and more than two people are diagnosed here every
day, leading to more than 850 new cases a year. Many Irish
people have numerous risk factors for skin cancer, including
fair skin and freckles and research shows that many of us do
not know how to be SunSmart.
With the support of Novartis, and working alongside creative
advertising agency DDFH&B, the Marie Keating Foundation
created the Skintervention video, which tells the story of six
Irish people affected by melanoma. The moving video, which
also features Consultant Dermatologist, Dr Patrick Ormond,
was launched on social media in June 2016 where it was
viewed by 750,000 people within six weeks.
Viewers were called to tag or share the video with people in
their lives who needed a skintervention, perhaps someone
who was often out in the sun without protection or who used
sun beds.

“

Many people we meet
have concerns about
cancer, we give them
practical steps to
help reduce their risk
& stay vigilant.”

Over the course of the summer, nearly 1,000 people had
a #skintervention. For one single facebook post, over 250
people tagged friends, family and loved ones and asked them
to be more responsible in the sun.
Building on the success of the 2015 Spot the Difference
initiative, this year’s campaign saw 19,000 visitors to our skin
cancer website, an increase of over 200% from last year. The
campaign was also featured in national media, including the
Irish Independent, the Daily Star and Woman’s Way.
The Marie Keating Foundation nursing team handing out
8,000 free samples of La Roche Posay Anthelios sun screen
throughout the summer alongside information on how to be
SunSmart. The nursing team attended over 115 events to give
out MKF skin cancer leaflets and infographic posters, the SPF
samples, give advice about sun safety and answer questions
about skin cancer, including Bloom, the National Ploughing
Championships, the Tour of Kildare cycle, and workplaces
and community centres nationwide. The nursing team also
held two free skin cancer seminars in August for patients
affected by skin cancer in Limerick and Cork, with over 65
people in attendance.

Marie Keating Foundation

Breast Cancer Awareness
•

Every year, over 3,200 women in Ireland are diagnosed with breast cancer.

•

Survival rates are now at 82% thanks to early detection and better treatments.

•

690 women die from breast cancer annually in Ireland.

•

Foundation launched Positive Living to support women affected by metastatic disease.

In 1995, Marie Keating noticed a change in her breasts but
did not go to the doctor as she assumed it was nothing and
was busy with family, friends and her job. However, what she
thought was just a small change turned out be breast cancer
and by the time she was diagnosed she had sadly left it too
late, and the cancer had spread to other parts of her body.
Marie passed away from breast cancer in 1998. Her family
set up the Foundation in her memory to promote awareness
of the signs and symptoms of all cancers, but the Foundation
is especially known for its work with breast cancer given that
the disease is so close to the family’s heart.
Around 3,200 women in Ireland are diagnosed with breast
cancer each year. The 5 year survival for all breast cancer
patients in Ireland is greater than 80%. In 2016, we had three
objectives:
• To raise awareness of breast cancer, its signs and
symptoms amongst women throughout Ireland.
• To invite the public to support women with breast cancer
and to raise awareness of Metastatic Breast Cancer.
• To raise awareness of the Marie Keating Foundation’s work
with breast cancer survivors through its Survive & Thrive
Programme and its ‘Out The Other Side’ exhibition.
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2016 saw the ‘Out The Other Side’ exhibition tour Ireland,
celebrating the fact that there are over 28,000 breast cancer
survivors in Ireland today. The exhibition aimed to empower
others affected by cancer by highlighting the positive stories
and experiences of 10 breast cancer survivors. Each story
comprised of three elements: a shared personal experience
of surviving breast cancer; a photograph of each survivor
as they are today; and a photograph representing their
‘survivorship milestone’, essentially, what surviving breast
cancer has meant for each of these women.
The exhibition was developed to offer encouragement to
other breast cancer survivors and women living with the
disease in Ireland. The exhibition toured a number of venues
throughout the country including University Hospital Galway,
Mater Misericordiae University Hospital, St Stephen’s
Green and Phoenix park, Dublin and Cork University
Hospital. Following the success of the exhibition as it
toured countrywide, the ‘Out The Other Side’ Breast Cancer
Survivorship Exhibition won the Best Patient Education Award
at the Irish Healthcare Awards in October 2016.
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Following on from the exhibition, and for the first time
ever, the Marie Keating Foundation hosted a breast cancer
awareness garden at Bloom in June 2016 which received a
lot of public attention and was a wonderful platform for the
Foundation and its volunteers to engage visitors to Bloom
on the subject of cancer. Sponsored by Roche, the ‘Out The
Other Side’ - Garden of Hope’s colour scheme symbolised
the emotions often experienced by women at various stages
of their breast cancer journey. The beginning of the path was
lined with dark purple and red foliage, plants and flowers,
representing the feelings women may experience when they
are first diagnosed or when they faced difficulties during
treatment. Towards the end of the path, the plants gradually
lighten with lots of white appearing at the end as a colour
that reflects new beginnings, support and encouragement.
The stand out features of the garden were a Pink Ribbon
Bench as well as a specially created Bra Hammock:
• The Bra Hammock, created by students from NCAD
together with volunteers from the Rediscovery Centre
Ballymun, included repurposed bras donated by women
all over Ireland as part of the Marie Keating Foundation
and Roche’s ‘Give Your Bra for Breast Cancer’ campaign.
• A Pink Bench and Ribbon with quotes from the ten women
featured in the Out the Other Side exhibition weaved
throughout the garden, representing the journey from
diagnosis to recovery. These were quotes of elation and
anti-climax, happy and sad, funny and irreverent, and filled
with confusion, guilt and gratitude.
Throughout October the Marie Keating Foundation also
held a breast cancer awareness seminar in Tralee Kerry.
On October 13th, the Foundation also hosted a special
Metastatic Breast Cancer Awareness Seminar together
with EuropaDonna and the Irish Cancer Society in Cork
to celebrate and shine a spotlight on the specifc needs of
women living with advanced breast cancer.
Following on from this Meatstatic Breast Cancer seminar,
with Pfizer’s support, the Marie Keating Foundation
launched ts first Positive Living programme providing
monthly workshops with expert speakers to support women
living with metastatic breast cancer
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Men’s Health
•

Over 10,000 Irish men diagnosed with cancer each year.

•

3 in 7 men in Ireland develop prostate cancer.

•

Colon cancer, lung cancer and testicular cancer are also cancers men should be aware of.

•

However, these cancers can be prevented or caught early when chances of survival are high.

•

Survive & Thrive programme in Waterford supported male cancer survivors.

•

Heroes of Hope exhibition of stories of 15 prostate cancer survivors launched.

In November 2016, the Marie Keating Foundation promoted
our annual Get Men Talking campaign to raise awareness of
men’s cancers and their signs and symptoms amongst men
and their families nationwide. Thanks to the kind support of
Astellas Oncology, the 2016 campaign further built on the
2015 campaign and entailed a new Get Men Talking microsite
with updated content on all the cancers affecting men; a
Survive & Thrive workshop programme in Waterford for male
survivors of cancer and the launch of a Heroes of Hope
exhibition at Connolly and Heuston Stations.
During the month of November, the Marie Keating Foundation
nurses and mobile units were also busy visiting workplaces,
community centres, gyms and other locations nationwide,
giving presentations on men’s health. They spoke with over
1,000 men during the month and handed out over 5,000
men’s health information packs. In November 2016, we
conducted some market research amongst men and their
attitudes to health. Some key results from this survey were
integrated into a new Get Men Talking video, facts such as:
Three in four in Ireland have never spoken to their GP about
cancer and one in two men in Ireland (55%) have not spoken
to a family member or friend about the disease.
Thanks to the kind support of Astellas Oncology, the 2016
campaign further built on the 2015 campaign and in addition
to the new video entailed Get Men Talking microsite with
updated content on all the cancers affecting men;
a Survive & Thrive workshop programme in Waterford for
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male survivors of cancer and the launch of a Heroes of Hope
exhibition at Connolly and Heuston Stations.
The new microsite includes information on the most common
cancers affecting men, including prostate, lung, bowel and
skin cancer. The new site was visited 6,536 times by over
5,820 users in November. 87% of these visitors had never
been to the Marie Keating Foundation website before.
As part of our Get Men Talking Campaign and to support
male cancer survivors, we also launched a new 6 week
Survive & Thrive programme in Waterford. With 15
participants taking part in the 6-week programme which
took place at the Solas Cancer Support centre, the Survive
& Thrive workshops supported cancer survivors to make the
transition back to the new normal.
During the month of November, the Marie Keating Foundation
also launched a new exhibition of 15 stories of prostate
cancer survivors from all around the country. With the aim of
giving hope to other men newly diagnosed with cancer the
stories highlight the fact that more than 90% of men now
survive prostate cancer.
Further to the launch of our Heroes of Hope exhibition
in November 2016, we were delighted when three of our
prostate cancer survivors, Sean Boylan, Michael Murphy and
Tony Ward were invited to speak to Ryan Tubridy about the
Heroes of Hope exhibition and their own personal stories on
the Late Late Show during November 2016.
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“

Thanks to early
detection and
advances in
treatment, there are
over 26,000 prostate
cancer survivors in
Ireland today.”
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The Comfort Fund
•

Cancer patients can face extra costs for medical fees, travels costs and household bills.

•

The average extra spend per month for a cancer patient is €862.

•

Costs can rise at same time that income drops due to loss in earnings.

•

The Marie Keating Foundation’s Comfort Fund helped over 531 families in 2016.

•

Comfort Fund grants given to families from 25 different counties.

The Marie Keating Foundation provides financial assistance
to people who are currently receiving treatment for any kind
of cancer and who find themselves in financial difficulty as a
result.
Research from the Irish Cancer Society showed cancer
patients and their families face a financial crisis while they
are going through their treatment. A diagnosis of cancer can
lead to increased medical costs such as consultant fees and
expensive medications, additional expenses from activities
such as increased travel to medical appointments that may
be some distance from home; increased utility bills due to
extra time at home while recovering from treatment and
reduction in earnings will a patient and perhaps their family
members have to take time off work.

How the Comfort Fund works
The Marie Keating Foundation works in partnership with
health care professionals, mainly Medical Social Workers
(MSWs) and Clinical Nurse Specialists (CNSs). Applications
are submitted on behalf of and with the consent of patients
who feel that they are in exceptional need of financial
assistance. All applications to the Comfort Fund must be
submitted by a health care professional as the Marie Keating
Foundation does not accept applications directly from
patients.
In 2016, Comfort Fund grants were given to assist with
• Medical costs

The average extra spend per month for a cancer patient is
€862, even for patients with a medical card or private health
insurance. Those who cannot work, work less or lose income
as a result of having cancer face an income drop averaging
€1,400 a month, or €16,750 per year.

• Household bills

Many people can find themselves overwhelmed by these
costs and this adds to the stress associated with their cancer
diagnosis. The Marie Keating Foundation hopes to lessen that
burden.

Over the past 18 months, there has been a significant
increase in the number of applications received which has
resulted in the average value of the Comfort Fund grants
being decreased. Given that our Comfort Fund is entirely
reliant on private donations, we are extremenly grateful to
those corporate and private supporters who have donated to
this fund.

Each year, the Marie Keating Foundation allocates a specific
budget for people who are undergoing treatment for cancer
but who are financially struggling. This fund has been in
existence since 2004 and accepts applications on behalf of
men, women and children from all around the country. In 2016
alone, the Marie Keating Foundation’s Comfort Fund helped
over 531 families through their cancer journey.
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• Transport costs
• Childcare expenses
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“

Cancer patients
and their families
face a financial
crisis while they
are going through
their treatment.”
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A Comfort Fund Recipient
Jamie Cremins Story
In 2016, Jamie Cremins was 25-years old and just returning to work after recovering from a serious illness when he discovered
a lump on his neck. Jamie thought it was it was just swollen glands, nothing major, but when he went into hospital and had a
biopsy, he was diagnosed with Hodgkin Lymphoma, cancer of the lymphatic system. He was devastated, “at 25, you should
be living in the moment, you should be fit as a fiddle but I was stuck in bed, not knowing what I could do because of my
illness” Jamie says.
Jamies wasn’t prepared for the financial implications of his illness, he explains, “When I was off, I was getting a €188 week. It
sounds fine, but if you have a flat to rent, if you have a phone bill, if you need to tax your car to get in and out for treatment,
electricity, even buying food. Simple things like that.” Last year, Jamie was one of 531 people and families supported by the
Marie Keating Foundation Comfort Fund. One of only a few such funds in Ireland that aim to help cancer patients struggling
financially to pay for their medical costs, bills, transport and childrecare expenses.
Now in remission, Jamies cannot thank the Foundation enough for the money he received from the Comfort Fund, as it helped
him maintain his independence during a vital time in his fight against cancer. Jamies says “Going through chemotherapy is
tough enough without having money issues to top it off. I was able to tax my car with the money. I had no immune system, so
if I went on trains or a bus to get to my treatment, there would have been a chance I’d pick up a cough or a cold and would
have to be admitted to hospital. I didn’t have much money, because I was out of work, but at least when I had my car I didn’t
feel like so much of a burden. I didn’t have to bother people. That’s the one thing you really hate when you are sick, bothering
people, you don’t want to be too much of a burden. Having the car meant a lot to me when I was sick as it meant having a bit
of freedom. The Marie Keating Foundation’s Comfort Fund gave me some much needed peace when I was very ill and I am so
thankful for that.”

“

Last year, Jamie was one of 531 people
and families supported by the Marie
Keating Foundation Comfort Fund. One
of only a few such funds in Ireland that
aim to help cancer patients struggling
financially to pay for their medical costs,
bills, transport and childcare expenses.
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“

The Marie Keating Foundation’s
Comfort Fund  gave me some much
needed peace when I was very ill and I
am so thankful for that.”

33

Marie Keating Foundation

Survive & Thrive Cancer Survivorship
•

Over 150,000 cancer survivors in Ireland.

•

Cancer survival rates for invasive cancers improved over 20 years.

•

Five-year survival rates for all invasive cancers now 59%.

•

Cancer now recognised as having an effect on emotions, as well as body.

•

Survive & Thrive courses helped 248 cancer survivors adjust to ‘new normal’ in 2016.

•

Courses held in cities and towns all over Ireland.
While more people are being diagnosed with cancer than
ever before, more people are surviving the disease, and
for longer. There are more than 150,000 people living with
and beyond cancer today in Ireland. But survival rates for
individual cancers vary hugely. For example, while 91% of
prostate cancer patients will survive for five years or more,
unfortunately only 13% of lung cancer patients will survive
as long. The five-year survival rates for all invasive cancers
jumped from 45% for patients diagnosed between 1994 and
1999 to 59% for those diagnosed between 2006 and 2011.
Survival rates for breast cancer increased from 72% to 81%.
The improvement for prostate cancer is even better, rising
from 69% to 91%. All of this is cause for great celebration.
However, it also creates new challenges as the increased
number of survviors underscores the importance of addressing
specific survivor health, care and quality of life needs.
Increasingly, it is recognised that cancer is not just a disease
of the body but has an enormous impact on a person’s
emotions. Long after a person is given the ‘all clear’, the
effects of the disease can be felt in ways that are both physical
and emotional. Between 20% to 30% of patients with cancer
will develop some form of psychological disorder on their
cancer journey, including in the survivorship phase.
In recognition of this and in order to help cancer survivors
adjust to the ‘new normal,’ the Marie Keating Foundation
launched its new Survive & Thrive programme in 2014.
Delivered by local experts in centres all over the country for
both men and women affected by any type of cancer, Survive
& Thrive courses are intended to help people deal with many
common topics that interest or concern survivors including:
• Facing the physical, mental & emotional challenges of a
cancer diagnosis
• Lingering side-effects from treatment
• Coping with emotions and stress
• Nutrition & diet after cancer
• Physical activity after cancer
• Mindfulness & mental well-being
• Dealing with side effects
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The Survive & Thrive programme is delivered as either an
evening workshop over the course of six weeks or as a oneday seminar. During 2016, over 240 cancer survivors attended
the workshops and seminars in Tipperary, Galway, Dublin &
Waterford.
All Survive & Thrive workshops are free to attend and are
entirely supported by fundraised donations and corporate
support.
Deirdre Morrissey, a cancer survivor who attended a Marie
Keating Foundation Survive & Thrive workshop programme
said, “I found the Survive and Thrive workshops to be hugely
helpful. It was great to know that I wasn’t alone through
meeting other survivors and hear that they were going through
similar experiences. The expert advice was something that is
badly needed and, in my opinion, a really necessary part of the
healing process. It’s important to not only survive, but thrive,
after cancer, but we need to help and support each other
through this so I would encourage anyone who is struggling in
any area post-treatment to get in touch with the Marie Keating
Foundation about the Survive and Thrive programme.”
Each Survive & Thrive course has been attended by people
who have survived many different types of cancers at
various stages, of both genders and of different ages and
backgrounds. Each course is evaluated by participants.
Below is just some of the feedback we received in 2016:
“The meetings have been warm and friendly. The group
opened up slowly. At first we were all quite reserved, but as the
weeks went by the group felt very supportive, and it was a very
caring and positive atmosphere which was very encouraging.”
“It was great to hear from other people who shared similar
experiences. That was one of the most important parts of the
whole experience. We have all exchanged contact details and
plan to meet again.”
“The Survive & Thrive programme was so helpful. I felt like I
had a place to meet other people who knew what I had gone
through and where I could talk about my experiences and also
ask health experts questions. It was one of the best things I
have done for myself in a long time. So glad I signed up.”
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The Marie Keating Foundation’s 12th annual ‘Survive & Thrive Fashion Show’

The Survive & Thrive Fashion Show
The annual Survive and Thrive fashion show has
become one of the highlights of the Marie Keating
Foundation’s calendar of events. Once again, this
October 2016, women who have, or who have had,
breast cancer, were invited to be supermodels for
the night and to strut their stuff on the catwalk in
celebration of cancer survivorship.
A total of fourteen supermodel survivors, mostly
nominated by their breast care nurse, and ten
models from Assets model agency sashayed down
the runway in the Conrad Hotel, modelling stunning
clothes from Dorothy Perkins. The audience at this
uplifting event was made up of the families and
friends of breast cancer survivors as well as a range
of suppliers of breast cancer merchandise.
Brown Sugar creative director Gary Kavanagh and
a team of volunteer make-up artists made sure the
ladies were looking their very best and got the full VIP
treatment at this unique event.
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Heroes of Hope Cancer
Survivorship Exhibition

The Heroes of Hope – Stories of Prostate Cancer Survival
exhibition tells the stories of 15 men who have survived prostate cancer.
In November 2016, the Foundation launched its Heroes of
Hope exhibition at Connolly and Heuston stations. Through
‘Heroes of Hope: Stories of prostate cancer survival’
15 survivors of prostate cancer shared the story of their
diagnosis, treatment and survival for a disease which over
3,400 men are diagnosed with each year in Ireland. The
Marie Keating Foundation developed the exhibition of reallife stories and photographs with the support of Astellas
Oncology to highlight that while being diagnosed with
prostate cancer will change your life, there is life after prostate
cancer. The ‘Heroes of Hope: Stories of prostate cancer
survival’.

The ‘Heroes of Hope’ campaign attracted strong media
coverage across all sectors (print, broadcast and online).
Media coverage of the campaign to date has reached over
2.5 million people and has a PR value of over €366,000. The
highlight of the campaign was when three of our prostate
cancer survivors, Sean Boylan, Michael Murphy and Tony
Ward was invited to speak to Ryan Tubridy about the Heroes
of Hope exhibition and their own personal stories on the Late
Late Show during November 2016.

Following the success of the Dublin exhibition, it was decided
to take this unique information campaign around Ireland. The
hope was that the stories shared will be a source of comfort
and hope to people all over the country at various stages of
their cancer journey. It has since been on display at the Aviva
Stadium, Bloom Garden Festival, St Stephen’s Green, Croke
Park, Eyre Square and Cork University Hospital. In addition to
the framed exhibition, the stories and photographs were also
made available on a new microsite at
www.mariekeating.ie/heroes-of-hope.
Prostate cancer is the most common male cancer in Ireland,
with 3,400 men receiving a diagnosis each year. However,
prostate cancer also has one of the best survival rates of
all cancers. Over 90% of men who are diagnosed with the
disease survive. The Get Men Talking campaign is advising
men over 50 years of age to talk to their GP about the PSA
blood test which can indicate if there is a problem with the
prostate.
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Our Heroes Of Hope are living proof that while being
diagnosed with prostate cancer will change your
life, there is life after prostate cancer.
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Fundraising
A letter from Linda Keating,
Director of Fundraising
To everyone from those who donated
money in one of our coin boxes, to the
companies who have sponsored our largescale projects, to the people who have
given their time and skills and everyone
in between, thank you for making this the
most impactful year ever for the Marie
Keating Foundation.

When my family and I started the Foundation, we initially
envisaged that it would comprise of three mobile units and a
nursing team that would travel nationwide providing cancer
awareness and information to the people of Ireland free of charge. That was almost 20 years ago now. It is hard to imagine how
much the Foundation has grown and evolved since then, and all because of the support of all of you.
With your help, this has been a year of incredible firsts. With the backing of the Medtronic Community Fund, we launched
our first digital and community outreach programme around cancer prevention in January, which continues to reach people
countrywide. We continued our amazing partnership with Roche to create our first ever garden at Bloom. Thousands of you
became part of that garden and helped us raise funds for our survivorship services by buying pink ribbons in celebration or in
memory of someone touched by cancer. With Pfizer by our side, we held our first ever Pfizer Powering Pink Duck Race and the
sight of thousands of pink ducks swimming down the Liffey is something I will never forget.
Everyone who knows the Marie Keating Foundation knows that we are blessed to have an enduring friendship with Marks &
Spencer. Now in its 15th year, this unique partnership celebrated a special moment this year as we marked the amazing €2
million milestone for our fight against cancer. I cannot express the depth of our gratitude to the M&S staff and customers for
their unfailing dedication to us, even when times have been tough. The funds you have raised have helped to keep our mobile
units on the road, helped us reach secondary school students nationwide with our schools programme, helped us to support
cancer patients in their darkest hour through our Comfort Fund and supported our Survive & Thrive programme which helps
men and women all over Ireland adjust to life after cancer.
Many people think that we are a very large charity with a huge fundraising team. In fact, the Foundation’s fundraising team
comprises of just two people. That is just another reason why every bake sale, every 5k charity runner, every pink ribbon you
buy and every €2 text donation you make helps make a real difference. I hope you can see from this annual report the impact
that you are having.

Thank you for making a difference.
God bless,

Linda Keating
Director of Fundraising
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Our special relationship with
Marks & Spencer
For over 15 years, the Marie Keating Foundation has been
fortunate to be a charity partner of Marks & Spencer Ireland.
During this time, all 17 M&S Ireland stores, hundreds of M&S
staff members and many of their customers have joined
together to help raise over €2 million for the Marie Keating
Foundation. These valuable funds have played a vital role
in helping us provide our cancer programmes and services.
Marks & Spencer have been there with us from the beginning
when we sought to put three mobile information units on
the road to where we are today, with a nursing team that
speaks to over 25,479 men and women each year, as well as
providing a host of other services.
In 2016 alone, Marks and Spencer once again proved to be
incredible partners, raising €198 665, to help us fund our
Comfort Fund, which was more needed than ever this year, as
well as helping to support our Survive & Thrive programmes.
M&S Ireland staff and customers continue to support the
Marie Keating Foundation at every level, in many ways big
and small.
* Every till point has a Marie Keating Foundation coin
collection box
* Bag packs are held in stores up and down the country
* All stores participate in a summer campaign where
proceeds of specially marked packets of berries are
donated to the Foundation
* Proceeds from post-surgery bras for women affected by
breast cancer are donated to the Foundation.
* In-store activities such as bake-sales, coffee mornings,
quiz nights and bikeathons are held
* Stores participate in a fun, but highly competitive,
Charity Football Cup Day. In 2016, the Dundrum store
emerged victorious.
While many charities are fortunate enough to have corporate
partners, the Marie Keating Foundation feels especially
privileged to have worked with M&S in such a dynamic, close
and effective way over so many years. Our relationship with
them means that we both have a great understanding of each
other’s organisations, and our teams work well together. M&S
stood by the Foundation in difficult recessionary times and
continue to trust and understand that we are an accountable,
transparent organisation that uses the funds they raise for us
in an efficient and effective way to fight cancer. Their ongoing
support helps us to plan ahead and put programmes in place
for those affected by cancer that otherwise might not be
possible.
We are grateful and proud to call Marks & Spencer Ireland not
only our partners but our friends and look forward to working
with them again in 2017 and beyond.
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Thank you
In 2015, M&S raised an incredible €183,112
for the Marie Keating Foundation

€2M
2002
Since 2002, M&S has raised
nearly €2 million for MKF

All 17 Irish stores have
played their part

Over 500 staff & 100s of
customers got involved

The 14-year M&S & MKF partnership demonstrates that M&S Ireland is a
brand that cares about people & is committed to further building loyalty &
trust through this association with MKF

Here’s how you came together to help us!

Coin collection boxes

Special campaigns like
berries & water

Donations from the sale
of products including
post-surgery bras

Merchandise &
bag packs

In-store activities: bake
sales, quiz nights &
bikeathons

Charity Cup
Football Day

80 cent
is spent on programmes
& services

www.mariekeating.ie

For every €1 donated:

14 cent

6 cent

is spent on
fundraising

is spent on
governance
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Fundraising Events & Campaigns
Each year, we run a very busy calendar of innovative engaging fundraising
events and activities:

Powering Pink Campaign
Each October, the Foundation devotes itself to raising
awareness of why and how women should be breast aware
and to raising funds for our breast cancer programmes and
services. In 2016, the Marie Keating Foundation launched
an innovative and interactive campaign to engage the public
and raise awareness by asking the public to sponsor a
duck for the Powering Pink Campaign, sponsored by Pfizer,
which involved a number of pink rubber ducks racing along
the Liffey. 3,000 ducks had been adopted as part of the
fundraising and awareness effort. The race was adjudicated
by Deloitte who recorded that winning Duck #1,130 finished
the 300m course in a time of 56 minutes. Martina Mc Donagh
from Naas, Co. Kildare owned the winning duck and won a
luxury weekend stay in the Conrad Hotel, Dublin. The Pfizer
Powering Pink Duck Race was a fun, pink event but it had a
serious cause at heart. One in ten women in Ireland will get
breast cancer in their lifetime and events like these make a
real difference in helping raise the funds the Marie Keating
Foundation needs to keep their services going and support
women and families that are affected by the disease.

Think Pink & Pink Patrons
In February 2016, over 35 organisations and schools around Ireland came together to Think Pink for the Marie Keating
Foundation. They held lots of pink themed events from bake sales to pink clothes days to pink bake offs to help raise funds for
the fight against female cancers, together raising €7,000. Also in October a number of Pink Patrons went pink with a purpose
raising much needed funds for our cancer awareness and support services. Brands who got involved included Pfizer, bb’s
bakers + baristas, Stella & Dot, Pigsback.com, Skechers and Theya Healthcare
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Valentine Ball
The annual Marie Keating Foundation Valentine Ball took
place at the Palmerstown House Estate, Co Kildare, in
February 2016 and was attended by over 110 people
who celebrated love of all kinds- family, friendship and
couples. Newstalk presenter and crime journalist, Paul
Williams spoke to the audience about crime in Ireland and
entertainment was provided by Karl Flood and DJ Gary from
First Class Entertainment. The night raised over €10,935 for
the Marie Keating Foundation’s cancer programmes and
services.

BBQ to Beat Cancer
In Ireland, we may not get the most amazing summers
but there is one certainty, and that’s if we get a glimmer
of sunshine, we will be getting out the BBQ. With that in
mind, in summer 2016, we asked the Irish public to be our
BBQ heroes and to host a BBQ to Beat Cancer. Launched
by Chef Rory O’Connell, over 110 people registered for
free BBQ packs, which were kindly sponsored by Flogas
& Ballymaloe Foods, and took part in this campaign which
raised funds for our men’s health services. Everyone who
took part received a free recipe book, chef’s hat invitations,
posters and money off coupons.

Women’s Mini Marathon
The Marie Keating Foundation has had a team participating in the Women’s Mini Marathon for over nineteen years. In 2016, over
80 took part in Ireland’s largest single-day charity event at part of our team. Team Marie Keating were hosted to a pre and post
event reception by House on Leeson St. Many of the team were running or walking in celebration or in memory of someone
touched by cancer. Together they raised €7,500 for our charity.

Celebrity Golf Classic sponsored by Marks and Spencer
The Marie Keating Foundation’s Celebrity Golf Classic sponsored by M&S is one of the highlights of the Foundation’s fundraising
calendar. Held in July of 2016, 24 teams participated in the golfing event held in the prestigious K Club. The teams were joined
by celebrities including Ronan and Storm Keating, Denise Van Outen, Mike Tindall, Mick Kinnane, Ken O’Doherty and Danny
O’Carroll to mention a few. Car sponsors Volvo ensured that the guests were transported in style and companies from all over
Ireland joined us for the day and helped raise over €55,360 for our cancer services.
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Tour of Kildare
The 15th annual Martin Earley Tour of Kildare in aid of the Marie Keating Foundation took place in August of 2016. This event
was once again proudly supported by the Naas Cycling Club who have helped organise, promote and raise sponsorship for
the Tour since its creation. Over 615 people, from keen cyclists to beginners and families took part in 110km, 65km and 20km
tours. We are very grateful for the support of the Naas Court Hotel, Eurocycles, Premier Dairies, Ballygowan, Montagues
Frozen Foods, and Farm Bake. Thanks to the cyclists and our supporters, the event raised over €16,000 and special thanks
to Martin Earley, a true sportsman for coming out to support this event once again.

A mindful walk of the Camino
In September 2016, a group of 14 people affected by cancer
were led by Sinead Gordon, a qualified psychologist, along
the Portuguese Way of the Camino. This 120 kilometre walk
through Northern Spain was based around mindfulness
and was intended to help people who had been affected
by cancer directly or indirectly learn to cope emotionally
with the effects of the disease. The trip followed on from
the Foundation’s highly successful walk of the French Way
of the Camino in 2015 which was covered by RTE’s Would
You Believe. Whilst the trip turned out to be an unforgettable
experience for all the participants, it also raised €28,000 for
the Foundaiton’s services.

Ronnie Whelan Golf Classic
Ronnie Whelan held his annual Golf Classic to raise funds for the Marie Keating Foundation in September 2016. Over 20
teams took part in the event in the Seapoint Golfclub which raised over €3,300

Pfizer Powering Pink Duck Race
The Pfizer Powering Pink Duck Race was the centre piece of our Breast
Cancer Awareness Month fundraising activity this October. In order to
raise funds for all our breast cancer programmes and services, including
our nursing services, mobile unit activity and our new Positive Living
programme for people affected by metastatic breast cancer, we invited
the public to adopt a pink rubber duck for €5 through our website and
at events throughout the country. Upon adopting a duck, each person
received an email with a duck number which corresponded to the
number stamped on the tail of one of our Powering Pink ducks which
was launched into the River Liffey on Saturday, 24 October 2016. The
duck email also contained advice on how to be more breast aware. 3,000
ducks were adopted in total and took part in the duck race, turning the
Liffey pink for the day. Martina McDonagh from Naas, Kildare was the
proud winner after her adopted Duck #1,130 crossed the finish line first.
The event and Pfizer’s sponsorship helped raise over €38,000 for our
breast cancer programmes and services and also generated media
coverage with a reach of over 6 million people and a PR value of
€266,758. Much of the media coverage mentioned metastatic breast
cancer which was a key target of the campaign as this is an area of
breast cancer that often goes unrecognised and leaves this patient group
feeling alone and unsupported.
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Pigsback Run and other Pigsback Activity
Pigsback.com, a long-time supporter of the Marie Keating
Foundation, organised the second annual Pigsback 5k/10k
Run in aid of the Marie Keating Foundation in the Phoenix
Park in October 2016. Over 400 people took part and
raised funds to support the Foundation’s work in breast
cancer awareness, support and survivorship. The event
was supported by the Lucan Gospel Choir and DJ Gary
from First Class Entertainment. Pigsback.com employees
and customers also supported the Foundation throughout
2016 also by adding a euro when making a purchase on
Pigsback.com. This initiative and the Pigsback Run raised a
total of €25,000 for the Foundation in 2016.

Fairyhouse Ladies Steeplechase sponsored by
Today FM
The second ever Ladies Only Steeplechase in Ireland took
place in November 2016 at Fairyhouse. This amazing
event was held in aid of the Marie Keating Foundation
and involved 12 female jockeys. However it was Rachael
Blackmore who took home the cup when partnering
Smadynium to victory. Sponsored by Today FM the
event was such a success that it will be held during the
prestigious Easter Festival in Fairyhouse in 2017.

Newstalk Christmas Lunch
In early December 2016, over 325 guests kicked off the Christmas
season at the Newstalk Christmas Lunch in aid of the Marie Keating
Foundation at The Shelbourne Hotel, Dublin. The lunch raised in excess
of €44,000 for the Foundation’s cancer services. Newstalk Breakfast
presenter and cancer survivor Chris Donoghue was MC for the event,
which was also attended by Maia Dunphy, Norah Casey, Martin and
Jenny King and Dr Eva Orsmond. Guests enjoyed a Christmas themed
meal accompanied by wine, kindly sponsored by Marks & Spencer
Ireland. Entertainment for the afternoon was provided by the talented Key
Notes. Harvey Norman laid on a Christmas-themed raffle while generous
brands such as Art Deco, Buff Day Spa, P20, Kiss cosmetics and the
Grafton Barber kindly provided gifts for the guests.

National Lottery Fund
In 2016, the Marie Keating Foundation received a €50,000 grant from the
National Lottery to support our cancer survivorship programmes which
were provided free of charge to men and women affected by any type of
cancer throughout Ireland.
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In view of the fact that we do not receive government funding, in addition
to our own fundraising efforts, we are entirely reliant on our donors and
supporters to help us fund our services, all of which are provided free
of charge. This year, 84 cent of every euro donated was spent on cancer
awareness and support services whilst we do our utmost to tightly
manage costs and overheads.
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Our Corporate Partners
Without our corporate partners, we simply would not be able to do what we do. Our nurses would not speak to over 25,479
people a year with our life-saving messages; our Schools’ Cancer Awareness Programme could not reach thousands of
students nationwide; our Comfort Fund could not provide families affected by cancer with relief when they are at their
darkest hour, our Survive & Thrive programme would not be helping cancer survivors to reclaim their lives. Furthermore, our
multidimensional cancer awareness campaigns would not be reaching hundreds of thousands of people in Ireland and beyond.
The generosity and tireless efforts of our corporate supporters allow us to strive to save lives and beat cancer. Through cause
marketing, campaign and event sponsorship, community and employee engagement, monetary donations and donations
in kind, not to mention the power of volunteerism, these organisations have helped us fight cancer in 2016. For this, we are
extremely grateful.
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Ambassadors and patrons
The Marie Keating Foundation is very fortunate to have some wonderful patrons and
ambassadors, who give their time to support our work and help us raise awareness and
funds. People from the world of sport, TV, stage, politics and beyond have lent us their
energy, enthusiasm, passion and voice in aid of cancer prevention, early detection and
survivorship and for that, we cannot say thank you enough.
Here are just some of the amazing people who have helped us in 2016.
This is what it looked like last year:

From the top:
Storm & Ronan Keating,
Glenda Gilson and
Rosanna Davison.
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From the top:
Anna Daly & Martin King;
Paddy Houlihan, Pat Shields
& Danny Carroll;
Denise Van Outen;
Norah Casey;
James Nesbitt;
Shane Byrne & Mike Tindall
and Stan Boardman &
Carmel Breheny
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Governance
The trust of our supporters is our most valuable resource. Each
time we receive a donation, we understand that we are being
trusted to use this donation to maximum effect in the fight
against cancer and this is a responsibility we take extremely
seriously. We have worked very hard to ensure that we have
best in class governance in our organisation.

How funds are spent

The Marie Keating Foundation is listed on Charities Regulatory
Authority’s Register of Charities (Charity Reg. No. 20038953) in
the Republic of Ireland. The Foundation has achieved the socalled Triple Lock of good Governance for the Charity Sector
and continues to place governance as a key strategic priority
for the board. This means that we are in full compliance with
the Governance Code for the Voluntary and Charity Sector;
the Fundraising Guiding Principles and with the Statement
of Recommended Practice (SORP) for its accounts. The
Foundation is also listed on the Register of the Charities
Regulatory Authority.

(i) C
 ommunity information services through three mobile
information units and our nursing team.
(ii) Public awareness campaigns on topics such as healthy
lifestyle choices, breast cancer, cervical cancer, men’s health
and skin cancer.
(iii) Comfort Fund grants to over 530 families.
(iv) Survive & Thrive programmes for cancer survivors.
(v) S
 chools Cancer Awareness Programme for secondary
school and YouthReach students nationwide.

All our finances, including detailed accounts, a breakdown
of how any donated funds are spent and salary information
is available within this report. You can also review annual
accounts for previous years on our website.

Board of Directors:
We are fortunate to have an extremely dedicated board who
bring a wide range of experience, skills and knowledge to
support the Foundation. All our board members are volunteers
and do not receive any expenses for the time, energy and
expertise which they volunteer to help the Marie Keating
Foundation in the fight against cancer. Members of the board
serve a maximum of two three year terms, to constantly refresh
ideas and skills. Biographies for all board members can be
viewed on our website.
The board of directors meets on a bimonthly basis to review
the strategic direction of the Foundation and to receive an
update on the performance of ongoing programmes. The Board
also appoints the Chief Executive, sets pay rates for the Chief
Executive and senior staff.
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For every euro that was donated to the Marie Keating
Foundation in 2016, 84% of our total income or €1,061,727
was spent on our core cancer awareness and support services,
which ensured we could support:

In 2016, we spent €235,130 on fundraising expenditure to
ensure we are doing everything we can to raise funds from a
diverse range of donors and to let the public know about our
work. This has a high return on investment because it inspires
people to support what we do, meaning we can reach even
more people with our life-saving message. As we do not
receive government funding (with the exception of a National
Lottery Grant of €50,000), we need to invest some resources
in fundraising campaigns and events which will recruit new
donors and raise funds for the work of the Foundation.
In 2016, the Foundation spent €65,019 on operational
and governance expenses to ensure we work in the most
effective and efficient way, and that donated funds are
spent wisely. Donations are managed with the highest level
of professionalism and accountability. The organisation
prepares its financial statements according to the statement
of Recommended Practice for Charities (SORP), which is
recommended best practice by the Accounting Standards
Board (ASB). A full set of our independently audited accounts is
available at the back of this report.
The Marie Keating Foundation does not pay any ‘top ups’ or
bonuses to any member of staff, patrons or board members.
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“

The Foundation has achieved what is
called a Triple Lock of good Governance
for the Charity Sector, which means that it
is in full compliance with the Governance
Code for the Voluntary & Charity Sector,
the Fundraising Guiding Principles and
the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) for our accounts.”
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Report and
Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2016
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Directors’ Report
The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

multidimensional campaigns on cervical cancer; skin cancer;
breast cancer and men’s cancers in particular.

1. COMPANIES ACT 2014
With effect from 30 April 2016, the company converted to a
Company Limited by Guarantee (“CLG”) under the Companies
Act 2014. On the same date, the change of name of the
company took effect, from Marie Keating Foundation Limited to
Marie Keating Foundation.

As regards Fundraising, 2016 showed a slight reduction in
income generated reflecting the ongoing challenge of a difficult
economic environment and in a charity sector which was
wracked with scandals in 2015 thereby resulting in uncertainty
for the wider sector. Despite this, and by focusing on its strong
governance legacy, the Foundation worked hard to continue to
run exciting new events and to seek out new partners whilst at
the same time further developing existing partnerships.

2. OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
The mission of the Foundation is “to make cancer less
frightening by enlightening”.
The principal activities of the organisation consist of the
following:
Cancer information and services
The Marie Keating Foundation has three mobile information
units and a nursing team who travel around Ireland to spread
the message about cancer prevention and early detection.
The Foundation’s Schools Cancer Awareness Programme is
delivered to secondary school students educating them about
cancer sign, symptoms and risk factors.
Throughout the year the Foundation runs a series of cancer
awareness and health promotion campaigns educating people
about different types of cancer and risk reduction.
Comfort Fund
The Marie Keating Foundation provides financial assistance
to people who are currently receiving treatment for any kind of
cancer and who, as a result, are in financial difficulty.
Survive & Thrive Survivorship Programme
Through the Survive & Thrive workshop programmes and
seminars, the Foundation supports cancer patients and
survivors giving expert advice on subjects such as nutrition;
physical exercise; emotional well-being etc.
The main areas of attention will be the development of the
company’s existing activities, securing adequate financial and
human resources to make these sustainable, and achieving the
highest standards of corporate governance.
The key strategic objectives agreed by the Board are:
• to assure focus on the core cancer awareness and support
services provided throughout Ireland by the Foundation.
• to continue a strong focus on corporate governance and
maintenance of the Triple Lock.
• to sustain fundraising growth.
3. F
 INANCIAL REVIEW, ACHIEVEMENTS AND
PERFORMANCE
In 2016, Marie Keating Foundation continued to expand
its reach and impact throughout communities in Ireland. In
addition to our core nursing activity, the Foundation’s key
cancer awareness message was enforced through a series of

In addition to a number of successful fundraising events and
campaigns, the Foundation further consolidated its relationship
with some key corporate partners, particularly in the retail and
pharmaceutical sectors reflecting the close alignment of key
strategic objectives in the area of health promotion.
Total income for the year amounted to €1,267,462, representing
a decrease of 4.5% over the prior year. 2016 saw the
Foundation being awarded some National Lottery funding
from the Department of Health (€50,000 in support of the
Foundation’s “Survive & Thrive Survivorship” Programme).
As regards the core mission of the Foundation, “to make
cancer less frightening by enlightening”, 2016 was another
energetic year in pursuit of this goal. During the year, the
Foundation’s nursing team completed 392 community and
workplace visits, reaching a total of 25,479 people around the
country, representing an increase of 11% on 2015. 388 people
were referred to their GPs as a result of these visits.
The Foundation also promoted a number of key Cancer
Awareness campaigns raising public awareness of the risk
factors, signs and symptoms associated with each of the key
cancers. Full blown campaigns were conducted on Cervical
Cancer – Don’t Fear the Smear; Breast Cancer; Skin Cancer;
Your Health Your Choice general health promotion as well
as a Get Men Talking men’s health campaign. This year,
the Foundation was successful in developing sponsorship
partnerships for five of these campaigns (Novartis for
Skintervention Skin Cancer Awareness; Roche Products
(Ireland) Limited for Cervical Cancer; Pfizer for Breast Cancer
Awareness and Astellas for Men’s Health/Prostate Cancer and
Medtronic for our Your Health Your Choice Campaign) and
was particularly successful in extending the reach of these
campaigns through social media and digital activity, through
a series of health seminars as well as through engaging calls
to action (e.g. asking the public to sponsor a duck for our
new Powering Pink Campaign which involved a rubber duck
race along the Liffey). Our ‘Out the Other Side’ Breast Cancer
Survivorship Exhibition won the best patient education award
at the Irish Healthcare Awards and Our Your Health Your Choice
campaign received a special commendation. For the first time
ever, Marie Keating Foundation had a breast cancer awareness
garden at Bloom in June 2016 which received a lot of public
attention. Sponsored by Roche Products (Ireland) Limited, the
‘Out The Other Side - Garden of Hope’ celebrated the fact that
more women are surviving breast cancer and highlighted the
Foundation’s services under the Survive & Thrive Programme.
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3. FINANCIAL REVIEW, ACHIEVEMENTS AND
PERFORMANCE (continued)
In 2016, Marie Keating Foundation continued to run a series of
Survive & Thrive workshops and seminars providing support
to cancer survivors following their treatment. The 6 week
programmes were held in Waterford and Dublin and seminars
were held in Cork, Dublin, Galway, Limerick and Waterford.
A new 6 week Positive Living Programme was held in Dublin
which supported metastatic breast cancer patients with their
specific health needs.
We continued the roll out of our Schools Cancer Awareness
Programme and ran a series of train the trainer workshops
with SPHE (Social, Personal and Health Education) teachers in
secondary schools around the country. A new partnership with
DCU, UCC and UCD’s School of Nursing and Health Sciences
saw the Foundation giving bursaries to 9 graduate nurses to
assist us in rolling out our Schools Programme to more second
level schools.
Despite the slight reduction in overall income, the total cost of
charitable activities increased to €1,061,727 or 84% of total
income. Overheads were well managed at €65,019 or 5.1%
of turnover. Overall, the Foundation recorded a deficit before
depreciation and amortisation of €64,937. After charging
depreciation and amortisation of €29,477, the net deficit was
€94,414.
Through our Comfort Fund, we increased the number of
grants being issued to needy families. A total of €111,159 was
distributed to 531 families in need of financial support as they
went through their cancer treatment.
The Foundation is very fortunate to have several key corporate
partnerships most notably with Marks and Spencer, which
continues its longstanding support and fundraising activities
for the Foundation. Other partnerships such as The Irish Daily
Mail Group, Communicorp, Harvey Norman and Skechers,
continue to play an important role. In 2016, the Foundation
continued to develop key health promotion partnerships with
the pharmaceutical sector including Astellas, Roche, Pfizer,
Novartis, Medtronic and Ipsen in support of their cancer
awareness campaigns.
The strategic review completed in June 2016 by the board
and management has set in place key strategic objectives
to strengthen corporate governance, sustain fundraising
growth and to assure a focus on the core cancer awareness
and support services provided throughout Ireland by the
Foundation.
The Foundation has achieved the so-called Triple Lock of
good Governance for the Charity Sector and continues to
place governance as a key strategic priority for the board. This
means that it is in full compliance with the Governance Code
for the Voluntary and Charity Sector; the Fundraising Guiding
Principles and with the Statement of Recommended Practice
(SORP) for its accounts. The Foundation is also listed on the
Register of the Charities Regulatory Authority.
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4. STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
The company is governed by a Constitution in accordance with
the Companies Act 2014. The directors who served during
the year did not have a beneficial interest in the company. All
directors serve in a voluntary capacity.
Decisions regarding the pay and remuneration of key
management personnel and the senior management team are
made by the Board.
The Board met on a regular basis during the year. It continued
to give priority to achieving the highest standards of corporate
governance, including strategic planning, financial management
and fundraising. The Foundation is in compliance with the
Governance Code for the Charity Sector. The Foundation is
also listed on the register of the Charities Regulatory Authority.
In common with many charities, the organisation must maintain
and develop its income sources to ensure the continuation of
its work. In order to mitigate this risk, the directors review the
sources of income on an on-going basis. In addition, reserve
levels are monitored to ensure that they are maintained at a
reasonable level in the context of planned expenditure and
future commitments.
The board has implemented a reserves policy, recognising
the seasonality of the Foundation’s income and the need to
maintain adequate cash balances to guarantee continuity of
services. Approximately 70% of the Foundation’s income
occurs in the second half of the year, resulting in reserves
reaching their low point at mid-year. The reserves policy
adopted focuses on net liquid assets.
The Board dealt with any major risk as presented during the
year and recognises the need for continuously updating and
strengthening processes for risk management. External risks
to funding are monitored and reviewed on a regular basis.
Internal risks are minimised by the implementation of
procedures for authorisation of all transactions and projects
and by timely reporting at Board level. All procedures are
periodically reviewed to ensure that they are relevant to the
charity’s needs.

5. PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The company is significantly dependent on
corporate and event donations, and while there has been no
specific threat of loss of funding the directors believe that
a significant risk exists because of this factor such that the
company would not be in a position to continue its activities in
the event of such an occurrence.
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6. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The company undertook no research and development during
the year.

7. POLITICAL DONATIONS
The company did not make any disclosable political donations
in the current financial year.

8. FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
The company will continue to operate its activities on a similar
basis for the foreseeable future.

9. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END
There have been no significant events affecting the company
since the year end.

10. DIRECTORS
The names of the individuals who were directors at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of
approval of the financial statements are set out below. Unless
otherwise indicated, they served as directors for the entire year.
		Therese Rochford
		Michael O’Reilly
		Edel Creely
		Gary Keating
		
Professor Ronald Grainger 
(appointed 12
September 2016)

12. ACCOUNTING RECORDS
The measures taken by the directors to secure compliance
with the requirements of sections 281 to 285 of the Companies
Act 2014 with regard to the keeping of accounting records
are the implementation of necessary policies and procedures
for recording transactions, the employment of competent
accounting personnel with appropriate expertise and the
provision of adequate resources to the financial function.
The company’s accounting records are maintained at the
company’s registered office at Unit 9, Millbank Business Park,
Lower Road, Lucan, Co. Dublin.

13. AUDITORS
The auditors, Mazars, Chartered Accountants and Statutory
Audit Firm, continue in office in accordance with Section 383(2)
of the Companies Act 2014.

On behalf of the Board
Thérèse Rochford
Director
Michael O’Reilly
Director
13 June 2017

11. STATEMENT ON RELEVANT AUDIT INFORMATION
In the case of each of the persons who are directors at the time
this report is approved in accordance with Section 332 of the
Companies Act 2014:
a) so far as each director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the company’s statutory auditors are
unaware, and
b) each director has taken all of the steps that he or she ought
to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
company’s statutory auditors are aware of that information.
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Directors’ Responsibilities Statement
The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable Irish
law and regulations.
Irish company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under the law, the directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the Companies Act 2014 and FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” issued by the Financial Reporting Council, and promulgated by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland. Under the law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are satisfied they give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the company as at the financial year end
and of the profit or loss of the company for the financial year and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014.
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards, identify those
standards, and note the effect and the reasons for any material departure from those standards; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will continue
in business.
The directors are responsible for ensuring that the company keeps or causes to be kept adequate accounting records which
correctly explain and record the transactions of the company, enable at any time the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the company to be determined with reasonable accuracy, enable them to ensure that the financial statements
and directors’ report comply with the Companies Act 2014 and enable the financial statements to be audited. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.
The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
company’s website. Legislation in Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

On behalf of the Board
Thérèse Rochford
Director
Michael O’Reilly
Director
13 June 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members Of
Marie Keating Foundation
We have audited the financial statements of Marie Keating Foundation for the year ended 31 December 2016 which comprise the
Statement of Financial Activities, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is the Companies Act 2014 and FRS 102 the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland issued by the Financial Reporting Council.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies Act 2014.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view and otherwise comply with the Companies Act 2014.
Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with the Companies Act 2014 and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s
Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the overall
presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the director’s
report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit.
If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, and financial position of the company as at 31 December 2016 and of its net
expenditure for the year then ended; and
• have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework and in particular, with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2014.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Members Of
Marie Keating Foundation
Matters on which we are required to report by the Companies Act 2014
• We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.
• In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements to be readily and
properly audited.
• The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.
• In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements.
Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of our obligation under the Companies Act 2014 to report to you if, in our opinion, the
disclosures of directors’ remuneration and transactions specified by Sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made.

Mairéad Divilly
For and on behalf of Mazars
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Audit Firm
Harcourt Centre
Block 3
Harcourt Road
Dublin 2
13 June 2017
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Statement of Financial Activities

Year ended
Y
Year ended
Year ended
Restricted
31 December
Restricted
31
Restricted
Unrestricted
31 December
Restricted
Unrestricted
31 December
Unrestricted
2015Funds
Funds Funds
2016Funds
Funds 2016 Funds Funds
Notes
Notes
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Unrestricted
Funds

Income
activitiesCharitable activities
Grants

5

-

and legacies
Donations and legacies
and gifts Donations and gifts
n kind Donations in kind

460,202
158,864

ng activities
Other trading activities
g events Fundraising events
se
Merchandise

288,372
9,249

me

Total income

5

e
Expenditure
ble activities
On charitable activities
programme
Project
costs
and programme costs
rheads Project overheads

-

54,000
54,000

-54,000 47,436

-

47,436
47,436

296,775
460,202 756,977
296,775 725,295
756,977106,124
725,295 831,419
106,124
-158,864 158,864
- 150,000
158,864
-150,000 150,000
-288,372 288,372
- 9,249 9,249

-

287,734
288,372
11,193 9,249

-287,734 287,734
- 11,193 11,193

-

916,687

5 350,775
916,6871,267,462
350,7751,174,222
1,267,462153,560
1,174,222
1,327,782
153,560

693,516
65,019

368,211
693,5161,061,727
368,211 865,748
1,061,727136,124
865,7481,001,872
136,124
- 65,019 65,019
72,40265,019
- 72,402 72,402
-

758,535

368,211
758,5351,126,746
368,211 938,150
1,126,746136,124
938,1501,074,274
136,124

funds On raising funds
e on raising
Expenditure
funds
on raising funds

235,130

nditure Total expenditure

993,665

diture)/income
Net (expenditure)/income

5 54,000

-235,130 235,130

-

214,155
235,130

-214,155 214,155

-

368,211
993,6651,361,876
368,211 1,152,305
1,361,876136,124
1,152,305
1,288,429
136,124

6

(76,978)

6 (17,436)
(76,978) (94,414)
(17,436)

ught forward
Funds brought forward

17

399,248

17 17,436
399,248 416,684
17,436 377,331
416,684

ied forward
Funds carried forward

17

322,270

17

-322,270 322,270

-

21,917
(94,414) 17,43621,917 39,353
17,436
-377,331 377,331

-

399,248
322,270 17,436
399,248 416,684
17,436
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Statement of Financial Position

Notes

31 December
2016

31 December
2015

_______________________________________________________________________________________
FIXED ASSETS

Tangible assets
Intangible assets

10
11

27,383
61,414

32,763
26,400

88,797

59,163

175,133
26,382
136,158

326,200
18,856
122,032

337,673

467,088

(104,200)

(109,567)

233,473

357,521

322,270

416,684

322,270

17,436
399,248

322,270

416,684

CURRENT ASSETS

Debtors
Stock
Cashand cash equivalents

12
13
14

CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year

15

NET CURRENT ASSETS

FUNDS OF THE CHARITY

Restricted funds
Unrestricted funds
TOTAL CHARITY FUNDS

17
17

On behalf of the Board
Thérèse Rochford
Director
Michael O’Reilly
Director
13 June 2017
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Statement of Cash Flows

Notes

Year ended
31 December
2016

Year ended
31 December
2015

_______________________________________________________________________________________
Cashflow from operating activities :
Net (expenditure)/income for the year

(94,414)

39,353

Adjusted for:
Depreciation
Amortisation
Movement in stock
Movement in debtors
Movement in creditors

15,577
13,900
(7,526)
151,067
(5,367)

11,695
2,197
938
(47,633)
(20,317)

73,237

(13,767)

Cashflow from investing activities:
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Purchase of intangible fixed assets

(10,197)
(48,914)

(19,881)
(28,597)

Net cash used in investing activities

(59,111)

(48,478)

14,126

(62,245)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 14

122,032

184,277

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

136,158

122,032

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities

Increase/(d ecrease) in cash in the year

14
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Notes To The Financial Statements
1. GENERAL INFORMATION
These financial statements comprising the Statement of
Financial Activities, the Statement of Financial Position, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the related notes constitute the
individual financial statements of Marie Keating Foundation for
the year ended 31 December 2016.
Marie Keating Foundation is incorporated in the Republic of
Ireland. The Registered Office is Unit 9, Millbank Business
Park, Lower Road, Lucan, Co. Dublin, which is also the
principal place of business of the company. The nature of the
company’s operations and its principal activities are set out in
the directors’ report.

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Marie Keating Foundation is constituted under Irish company
law as a Company Limited by Guarantee (“CLG”) and is a
registered charity. Up to 1 June 2015, company law scoped
out companies not trading for gain for the members from
the requirements with regard to formats and content of
financial statements which applied to for profit companies
thus permitting the adoption of a format appropriate to a
charity. Accordingly the directors of Marie Keating Foundation
previously adopted the format of the Charities Statement
of Recommended Practice (SORP) in the preparation of the
financial statements. SORP has heretofore been recognised as
best practice for financial reporting by charities in Ireland. The
Companies Act 2014 became effective in law on 1 June 2015
and from that date applies the format and content of financial
statements requirements appropriate for a company trading for
the profit of its members to a company that is a not for profit
organisation such as Marie Keating Foundation.
In order to provide information relevant to understanding
the stewardship of the directors and the performance and
financial position of the charity, Marie Keating Foundation
has prepared its financial statements in accordance with
the formats provided for in the Statement of Recommended
Practice (SORP) (Revised 2015) “Accounting and Reporting by
Charities”. Had the company format and content of financial
statements requirements suitable for a company trading for the
profit of its members been presented instead, a statement of
comprehensive income with related notes showing items such
as turnover and cost of sales would have been reported along
with a profit on ordinary activities before taxation.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all years presented unless
otherwise stated.
a) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with accounting standards generally
accepted in Ireland and Irish statute comprising the Companies
Act 2014 as applied in accordance with the Statement of
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Recommended Practice (SORP) (Revised 2015) “Accounting
and Reporting by Charities” as published by the Charity
Commission for England and Wales, who are recognised by
the UK Financial Reporting Council (FRC) as the appropriate
body to issue SORPs for the charity sector in the UK. Financial
reporting in line with SORP is considered best practice for
charities in Ireland.
b) Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities
(“SOFA”) when the company is entitled to the income, any
performance related conditions have been met, receipt is
probable and the amount can be quantified with reasonable
accuracy.
Where services are provided to the charity as a donation
that would normally be purchased from our suppliers, this
contribution is included in the financial statements at an
estimate based on the value of the contribution to the charity,
and recognised as a donated service or facility.
Monies received in respect of expenditure that must take place
in a future accounting period is accounted for as deferred
income and recognised as a liability up until the accounting
period allowed by the condition to expend the resource.
Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable
and the amount can be measured reliably by the charity.
Income is analysed as Restricted or Unrestricted. Restricted
funds represent income recognised in the financial statements,
which is subject to specific conditions imposed by the donors
or grant making institutions. Unrestricted funds represent
amounts which are expendable at the discretion of the
company, in furtherance of the objectives of the charity. Such
funds may be held in order to finance working capital or capital
investment.
c) Expenditure
All expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and has
been classified under headings that aggregate all costs related
thereto. Where costs cannot be directly attributed to particular
headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis
consistent with the use of the resources.
d) Employee benefits
The charity provides a range of benefits to employees,
including paid holiday pay arrangements and contributions to
a company-facilitated Personal Retirement Saving Account
(PRSA).
Short term benefits
Short term benefits, including holiday pay and other similar
non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the service is received. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the financial year.
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Notes To The Financial Statements
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
d) Employee benefits (continued)
Pensions
Pension costs arising under the company-facilitated Personal
Retirement Savings Account (PRSA) scheme are charged to the
Statement of Financial Activities as incurred.
e) Operating leases
Operating lease payments are charged to the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period to which they relate.
f) Functional currency and presentation currency
The financial statements are measured and presented in
the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (its functional currency). The financial
statements are presented in Euro (“€”) which is also the
functional currency of the company.
g) Taxation
The entity is a registered charity. All of its activities are exempt
from direct taxation.
Any irrecoverable VAT is charged to the statement of financial
activities, or capitalised as part of the cost of the related asset,
as appropriate.
h) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.
Depreciation is provided at rates to write off the cost of each
asset over its expected useful life as follows:
Fixtures and fittings
Computer equipment
Mobile units		
Motor vehicle		
Leasehold improvements

5 years
5 years
5 years
5 years
10 years

i) Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost.
Intangible assets are recognised in the statement of financial
position only if they are identifiable, controllable, there is an
expectation that they will produce future economic benefits
and their cost can be measured reliably. Intangible assets
with a finite useful life are valued at their acquisition or
production cost or at their appraised value, net of accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
to write off the cost of the intangible asset over the shorter of
the period expected directly or indirectly generate economic
benefits in the form of cash flows and a period covered by legal
rights. Useful lives are reviewed annually and the impact of any
changes is reflected prospectively.

The company uses the following amortisation rates:
Website			5 years
Database System		
5 years
j) Stock
Stock is stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling
price. Cost represents invoiced value. Estimated selling price
comprises the actual or estimated selling price less all costs to
be incurred in selling and distribution.
k) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash consists of cash on hand and on-demand deposits.
Cash equivalents consist of short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash that are
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
l) Financial instruments
Financial assets
Basic financial assets, including trade debtors and cash and
cash equivalents are initially recognised at transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction,
where the transaction is measured at the present value of the
future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest. Such
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured
at amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence
of impairment. The impairment loss is recognised in the
statement of financial activities.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the asset expire or are settled; or
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
asset are transferred to another party; or control of the asset
has been transferred to another party who has the practical
ability to unilaterally sell the asset to an unrelated third party
without imposing additional restrictions on transfer.
Financial liabilities
Basic financial liabilities, including trade and other payables are
initially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement
constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument
is measured at the present value of the future receipts
discounted at a market rate of interest.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
l)Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade payables
are recognised initially at transaction price and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is
extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts
presented in the financial statements when there is an
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle to liability simultaneously.
m) Funds
Unrestricted funds are available to spend on activities that
further any of the purposes of the charity. Designated funds
are unrestricted funds of the charity which the trustees have
decided at their discretion to set aside for a specific purpose.
Restricted funds are donations which the donor has specified
are to be solely used for particular areas of the company’s work
or for specific projects being undertaken by the company.
n) Provisions and contingencies
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount of the obligation can be
estimated reliably.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities, arising as a result of past events, are
recognised when it is probable that there will be an outflow
of resources and the amount can be reliably measured at
the reporting date. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the
financial statements unless the probability of an outflow of
resources is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised. Contingent assets
are disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS
The charity made judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that were
not readily apparent from other sources in the application of the
charity’s accounting policies. Estimates and judgements are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from the
estimates.
a) Critical judgements made in applying the company’s
accounting policies
Management is of the opinion that there are no critical
judgements (other than those involving estimates) that have
a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:
Donated services
The charity received donated services during the year such
as advertising. Accounting standards require that donated
services should be recognised as income and as expenditure in
the statement of financial activities, at fair value. Management
has estimated the fair value of donated services to be €158,864
(2015: €150,000).
Useful lives of tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets comprise office equipment, motor
vehicles, leasehold premises and fittings. The annual
depreciation charge depends primarily on the estimated lives
of each type of asset. The directors regularly review these
useful lives and change them if necessary to reflect current
conditions.
In determining these useful lives management consider
technological change, patterns of consumption, physical
condition and expected economic utilisation of the assets.
Changes in the useful lives can have a significant impact on the
depreciation charge for the financial year.
Useful economic lives of intangible fixed assets
The company amortises the intangible assets over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life reflects
management’s estimate of the period that the company
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of the
company’s intangible assets. Impairment reviews are carried
out whenever a triggering event has occurred to determine if
the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount.
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5. INCOME
Income derives from activities in the Republic of Ireland and the United Kingdom. Income comprises grants, donations, corporate
sponsorship, donations in kind, fundraising income and merchandise income.

2016
2016

2015
2015

Republic of Ireland
United Kingdom

1,264,675
2,787

1,327,782
-

Republic of Ireland
United Kingdom

1,264,675
1,267,462
2,787
2016

1,327,782
1,327,782
2015

Funding

1,267,462
2016
1,264,675
2,787

1,327,782
2015
1,327,782
-

Funding

2016

Restrictedofgrant
income
Republic
Ireland
United Kingdom
Restricted grant income

American Ireland Fund
Department of Health
Other
American
Ireland Fund

Department
of Health
Restricted
grant
income
Other

Schools Cancer Awareness
4,000
1,267,462
Survivorship and Wellness
50,000
Cancer/Health
Awareness
Schools
Cancer
Awareness
4,000
Survivorship
and
Wellness
50,000
Funding
2016
54,000
Cancer/Health Awareness
-

2015

1,327,782
30,000
17,436
30,000
2015
47,436
17,436

There
haveIreland
been no
unfulfilled
conditions
or Awareness
contingencies attached
American
Fund
Schools
Cancer
4,000 to grants recognised
- as income
54,000
47,436
in
2016.
Department
of Health
Survivorship and Wellness
50,000
30,000
Other have been no unfulfilled
Cancer/Health
Awareness
- to grants recognised
17,436 as income
There
conditions or
contingencies attached
in 2016.
54,000
47,436
2016
2015
6. NET (EXPENDITURE)/INCOME
There
have been no unfulfilled
conditions
or contingencies attached to grants recognised as income
Net
(expenditure)/income
is stated
after charging:
2016
2015
in 2016.
Depreciation
15,577
11,695
Net (expenditure)/income is stated after charging:
Amortisation
13,900
2,197
Auditors’
remuneration
(excluding
Value
added
tax)
4,000
3,650
Depreciation
15,577
11,695
2016
2015
Operating lease expense
29,612
29,705
Amortisation
13,900
2,197
Auditors’ remuneration (excluding Value added tax)
Net (expenditure)/income is stated after charging:
Operating lease expense
Depreciation
Amortisation
Auditors’ remuneration (excluding Value added tax)
Operating lease expense
Wages and salaries
7. STAFF COSTS
Social welfare costs
Other
benefit costs
Wagesretirement
and salaries

4,000
29,612
15,577
13,900
2016
4,000
29,612
2016
498,059
48,186
6,936
498,059

3,650
29,705
11,695
2,197
2015
3,650
29,705
2015
509,264
50,491
6,885
509,264

Social welfare costs
Other retirement benefit costs

48,186
2016
553,181
6,936

50,491
2015
566,640
6,885

Wages and salaries
Social welfare costs
Other retirement benefit costs

498,059
553,181
48,186
6,936

509,264
566,640 21
50,491
6,885
21

553,181

566,640
21
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7. STAFF COSTS (continued)
The average monthly number of persons employed by the company during the year was 15 (2015:16) analysed as follows:

Administration
Services
Administration
Services

2016
No.
2016
No.

6
9
6
9
15
15

2015
No.
2015
No.

6
10
6
10
16
16

The number of employees, whose remuneration was greater than €50,000 during the year, is as follows:

Salary range
Salary range

50,00060,000
50,00070,00060,000
80,000
70,00080,000-

60,000
70,000
60,000
80,000
70,000
90,000
80,000
90,000

2016
2016

1
1
1
1
1

2015
2015

11
1
1

Emoluments include salaries and employer PRSI costs. No benefits in kind are payable by the company.
Directors’ remuneration and transactions
No remuneration or other benefits have been paid or are payable to any directors directly or indirectly from the funds of the
charity. No expenses were incurred by the directors.
8. TAXATION
Marie Keating Foundation is a charity, which subject to the provisions of Sections 207, 266 and 609 of the Taxes Consolidation
Act, 1997, is exempt from income tax, corporation tax, capital gains tax and deposit interest retention tax.

9. PENSION
The company facilitates a Personal Retirement Savings Account (PRSA) scheme for its employees, the contributions to which are
paid to an independently administered fund. The retirement benefit cost for the year represents contributions payable to the fund.
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10. TANGIBLE ASSETS

Leasehold Fixtures
Buildings & f ittings

Mobile
units

Computer
equipment

Coin
boxes

Total

Cost

At 31 December 2015
Additions

81,878
-

8,917
-

427,736
3,745

74,642
-

11,487
6,452

604,660
10,197

At 31 December 2016

81,878

8,917

431,481

74,642

17,939

614,857

Accumulated Depreciation

At 31 December 2015
Charge for year

72,248
8,257

6,446
704

422,525
2,406

69,704
1,265

974
2,945

571,897
15,577

At 31 December 2016

80,505

7,150

424,931

70,969

3,919

587,474

At 31 December 2015

9,630

2,471

5,211

4,938

10,513

32,763

At 31 December 2016

1,373

1,767

6,550

3,673

14,020

27,383

Leasehold Fixtures
Buildings & fittings

Mobile
units

Computer
equipment

Coin
boxes

Total

Net Book Value

In respect of prior year:

Cost

At 31 December 2014
Additions

81,878
-

8,917
-

421,857
5,879

72,127
2,515

11,487

584,779
19,881

At 31 December 2015

81,878

8,917

427,736

74,642

11,487

604,660

Accumulated Depreciation

At 31 December 2014
Charge for year

63,991
8,257

5,742
704

421,857
668

68,612
1,092

974

560,202
11,695

At 31 December 2015

72,248

6,446

422,525

69,704

974

571,897

At 31 December 2014

17,887

3,175

-

3,515

-

24,577

At 31 December 2015

9,630

2,471

5,211

4,938

10,513

32,763

Net Book Amount
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Website

CRM System

Total

At 31 December 2015
Additions

28,597
24,699

24,215

28,597
48,914

At 31 December 2016

53,296

24,215

77,511

At 31 December 2015
Charge for year

2,197
9,930

3,970

2,197
13,900

At 31 December 2016

12,127

3,970

16,097

At 31 December 2015

26,400

-

26,400

At 31 December 2016

41,169

20,245

61,414

Website

CRM System

Total

Cost

Accumulated Amortisation

Net Book Value

In respect of prior year:

Cost

At 31 December 2014
Additions

28,597

-

28,597

At 31 December 2015

28,597

-

28,597

At 31 December 2014
Charge for year

2,197

-

2,197

At 31 December 2015

2,197

-

2,197

At 31 December 2014

-

-

-

At 31 December 2015

26,400

-

26,400

Accumulated Amortisation

Net Book Value
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2016
2016

2015
2015

2016

2015

40,837
40,837
2016
124,660
124,660
40,837
9,636
9,636
124,660
40,837
175,133
9,636
175,133
124,660
9,636
175,133

78,233
78,233
2015
242,201
242,201
78,233
5,766
5,766
242,201
78,233
326,200
5,766
326,200
242,201
5,766
326,200

175,133

326,200

2016
2016

2015
2015

2016

2015

26,382
26,382
2016

18,856
18,856
2015

Promotional
stock
26,382
The replacement
costs of stock
does not differ materially from the amount as stated above.

18,856

12. DEBTORS

Debtors
Debtors
Accrued
Accrued income
income
Debtors
Prepayments
Prepayments
Accrued
Debtors income
Prepayments
Accrued income
Prepayments

All trade debtors are due within 30 days. Debtors are shown net of impairment in respect of doubtful debts.

13. STOCK

Promotional
Promotional stock
stock
Promotional stock

26,382

18,856

2016
2016

2015
2015

2016

2015

Cash
Cash at
at bank
bank

136,158
136,158
2016

122,032
122,032
2015

Cash at bank

136,158

122,032

Cash at bank

2016
2016
136,158

2015
2015
122,032

14. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Amounts
Amounts falling
falling due
due within
within one
one year
year

15. CREDITORS

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade
Trade creditors
creditors
Accruals
Amounts falling due within one year
Accruals
Trade
creditors (Note 16)
Deferred
Deferred income
income (Note 16)
Accruals
Paye/prsi
Trade
creditors
Paye/prsi
Deferred
income (Note 16)
Pension
Accruals
Pension
Paye/prsi
Deferred income (Note 16)
Pension
Paye/prsi
Pension

2016

2015

45,538
45,538
2016
16,572
16,572
45,538
27,474
27,474
16,572
14,014
45,538
14,014
27,474
602
16,572
602
14,014
27,474
104,200
602
104,200
14,014
602
104,200

40,651
40,651
2015
6,440
6,440
40,651
46,000
46,000
6,440
15,843
40,651
15,843
46,000
633
6,440
633
15,843
46,000
109,567
633
109,567
15,843
633
109,567

104,200

109,567

Trade creditors
The repayment terms of trade creditors vary between on demand and 30 days. No interest is payable on trade creditors.
Taxes and social security costs
Taxes and social security costs are subject to the terms of the relevant legislation. Interest accrues on late payment. No interest
was due at the financial year end date.
Others
The terms of accruals are based on the underlying contracts. Other amounts included within creditors not covered by specific
note disclosures are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
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16. DEFERRED INCOME
Balance
31 December
Balance
2015
31 December
Balance
2015
31 December
2015

Donations and grants
Donations and grants

46,000
46,000

Donations and grants

46,000

17. MOVEMENT OF FUNDS

Opening balance
Opening
balance
Net
movement
Net movement
Opening balance
Closing
balance
Net movement
Closing balance
Closing
balance
Represented
by:
Represented
Fixed assets by:
Fixed assets
Current
assets
Represented by:
Current liabilit
assets
Fixed assets ies
Current liabilities
Current assets
Net assets
Current
liabilities
Net assets
Net assets

Unrestricted Restricted
funds Restricted
funds
Unrestricted
funds
funds
Unrestricted Restricted
funds
funds

399,248
17,436
399,248 (17,436)
17,436
(76,978)
(76,978) (17,436)
399,248
17,436
322,270 (17,436)
(76,978)
322,270
-

27,474
Total
2016
Total
2016
Total
2016

416,684
416,684
(94,414)
(94,414)
416,684
322,270
(94,414)
322,270

46,000
46,000

377,331
377,331
21,917
21,917
377,331
399,248
21,917
399,248

399,248
59,163
59,163
449,652
449,652
(109,567)
59,163
(109,567)
449,652
399,248
(109,567)
399,248

322,270

-

322,270

399,248

Income
Income

Expenditure
Expenditure

Income

104,675
104,675
18,085
18,085
20,000
104,675
20,000
4,000
18,085
4,000
50,000
20,000
50,000
154,015
4,000
154,015
50,000
350,775
154,015
350,775
916,687
350,775
916,687
1,267,462
916,687
1,267,462

Expenditure

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted funds
Total funds
Unrestricted funds
Total funds

17,436
17,436
17,436
17,436
17,436
399,248
17,436
399,248
416,684
399,248
416,684

Total funds

416,684

1,267,462

1,361,876

Mens’ Health Awareness
Mens’Cancer
HealthAwareness
Awareness
Skin
Skin
Cancer
Awareness
Breast
CancerAwareness
Awareness
Mens’ Health
Breast Cancer
Awareness
Schools
Cancer
Awareness
Skin Cancer Awareness
Schools
Cancer
Awareness
Survivorship
and
Wellness
Breast Cancer Awareness
Survivorship and
Wellness
Cancer/Health
Awareness
Schools Cancer Awareness
Cancer/Health Awareness
Survivorship and Wellness
Cancer/Health Awareness

27,474
27,474
27,474

Unrestricted Restricted
funds Restricted
funds
Unrestricted
funds
funds
Unrestricted Restricted
funds
funds

322,270
88,797
88,797
337,673
337,673
(104,200)
88,797
(104,200)
337,673
322,270
(104,200)
322,270

Balance
Balance
31 December
31 December
2015
Balance
2015
31 December
2015

Balance
31 December
Balance
2016
31 December
Balance
2016
31 December
2016

46,000

--

Restricted funds
Restricted funds
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27,474
27,474

Amounts
released
Amounts
during
the
released
Amounts
year
during
the
released
year
during the
year

322,270
88,797
88,797
337,673
337,673
(104,200)
88,797
(104,200)
337,673
322,270
(104,200)
322,270

18. STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Restricted funds

Amounts
received
Amounts
during
the
received
Amounts
year
during
the
received
year
during the
year

(104,675)
(104,675)
(18,085)
(18,085)
(20,000)
(104,675)
(20,000)
(4,000)
(18,085)
(4,000)
(50,000)
(20,000)
(50,000)
(171,451)
(4,000)
(171,451)
(50,000)
(368,211)
(171,451)
(368,211)
(993,665)
(368,211)
(993,665)
1,361,876
(993,665)
1,361,876

17,436
17,436
17,436
17,436
17,436

Total
2015
Total
2015
Total
2015

377,331
377,331
39,353
39,353
377,331
416,684
39,353
416,684

17,436 416,684
59,163
- 467,088
59,163
17,436
17,436
467,088
-- (109,567)
59,163
- (109,567)
17,436 467,088
17,436
416,684
- (109,567)
17,436 416,684
17,436

416,684

Balance
Balance
31 December
31 December
2016
Balance
2016
31 December
2016

---322,270
322,270
322,270
322,270
322,270
322,270
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18. STATEMENT OF FUNDS (continued)
The board has implemented a reserves policy, recognising the seasonality of the Foundation’s income and the need to maintain
adequate cash balances to guarantee continuity of services. Approximately 70% of the Foundation’s income occurs in the second
half of the year, resulting in reserves reaching their low point at mid-year. The reserves policy adopted focuses on net liquid
assets. This excludes fixed assets (e.g. mobile units) and stock. It requires that the net current assets of the Foundation (excluding
stock) at year-end
a minimum
of fouryear:
months’ average expenditure.
In be
respect
of prior

Balance

In respect of prior year: 31 December
Restricted funds
Restricted funds

2014
Balance
31 December
2014

Men’s Health Awareness
Breast Cancer Awareness
Men’s Health
Awareness
Schools
Cancer
Awareness
Breast Cancer
Awareness
Survivorship
and
Wellness
Cancer/Health
Schools CancerAwareness
Awareness
Survivorship and Wellness
Cancer/Health Awareness

-

Income

Expenditure

Income

Expenditure

28,124
45,000
28,124
30,000
45,000
15,000
35,436
30,000
15,000
35,436
153,560

28,124
45,000
28,124
30,000
45,000
15,000
18,000
30,000
15,000
18,000
(136,124)

Balance
31 December
2015
Balance
31 December
2015

17,436
17,436

Unrestricted funds

377,331
-

1,174,222
153,560

(1,152,305)
(136,124)

399,248
17,436

Total funds funds
Unrestricted

377,331

1,327,782
1,174,222

(1,288,429 )
(1,152,305)

416,684
399,248

Total funds

377,331

1,327,782

(1,288,429 )

416,684

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The analysis of the carrying amounts of the financial instruments of the charity required under Section 11 of FRS 102 is as follows:

2016

2015

2016

2015

Trade debtors

40,837

78,233

Trade debtors

40,837

78,233

Trade creditors

45,538

40,651

Trade creditors

45,538

40,651

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
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20. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
Total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Within one year
Within two and five years

2016

2015

5,203
-

30,659
5,310

5,203

35,969

21. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR END
There have been no significant events affecting the charity since the year end.
22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Key management personnel
All directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the company are considered to be key management personnel. Total remuneration in respect of these individuals is
€284,017 (including employer social insurance contributions and employer pension contributions). Board members operate in a
voluntary capacity. The remuneration of key management personnel is determined by the Board. No remuneration or other
benefits have been paid or are payable to any directors directly or indirectly from the funds of the charity. No expenses were
incurred by the directors.
23. COMPARATIVES
Certain prior year figures have been regrouped or reclassified in the current year for the purposes of comparability and
consistency. Assets held which had been previously classified as tangible assets were reclassified as intangible assets this year.
The reclassification is to allow better representation of the assets’ nature. The 2015 amounts have also been reclassified to enable
a year on year comparative in line with FRS102.
24. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved by the directors on 13 June 2017.
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The Marie Keating
Foundation’s Comfort
Fund helped over 531
families in 2016.
Thank you for your
continued Support.

Unit 9 Millbank Business Park,
Lucan, Co. Dublin
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